
Property / Regeneration Briefing 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Property / Regeneration Briefing to be held 
as follows for the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Monday, 12 August 2019

TIME: 11.00 am

VENUE: Committee Room 4, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for absence 

2  Declarations of interest 

3  Items for Decision - Part 1 (Open to the Public) 

3a Plot E7/E8 Chapel Street - Homes England Housing Infrastructure 
Fund 

(Pages 1 - 6)

3b Private Rented Sector - Langworthy, Weaste and Seedley (Pages 7 - 114)

3c Asset of Community Value - Cheltenham Crescent Playing Field (Pages 115 - 122)

3d Liverpool Street/ Kara Street, Langworthy (Pages 123 - 134)

4  Exclusion of the Public 

5  Items for Decision - Part 2 (Closed to the Public) 

No Items

6  Any other business 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3013
Mike Relph, Senior Democratic Services Advisor E-Mail: mike.relph@salford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



Part 1 – Open to the Public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR, PLACE 

TO

THE CITY MAYOR’S PROPERTY/REGENERATION BRIEFING

ON 12TH AUGUST 2019 

TITLE: Homes England’s Housing Infrastructure Fund - Marginal Viability - Plot E7/E8 
Chapel Street 

RECOMMENDATIONS:

It is recommended that the City Mayor:

1. Approves the Council entering into a grant funding agreement with Homes England 
for the receipt of a maximum sum of £1,176,819 in relation to the Housing 
Infrastructure Fund (Marginal Viability Fund) for Plot E7/E8 Chapel Street. 

2. Approves the Council entering into a grant funding agreement with English Cities 
Fund for the provision of onward funding of the maximum sum of £1,176,819 in 
relation to the Housing Infrastructure Fund (Marginal Viability Fund) for Plot E7/E8 
Chapel Street

3. Provides delegated authority to the Strategic Director Place, City Solicitor and Chief 
Finance Officer to negotiate and finalise the detailed financial, commercial and 
contractual arrangements in respect of the proposed grant from Homes England to 
the Council. 

4. Provides delegated authority to the Strategic Director Place, City Solicitor and Chief 
Finance Officer to negotiate and finalise the detailed financial, commercial and 
contractual arrangements in respect of the proposed onward grant from the Council 
to English Cities Fund. 

5. Authorises the City Solicitor to enter into and complete all necessary agreements or 
documents to give effect to the above recommendations.  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

The Council has made a successful grant funding application to Homes England to secure a 
maximum sum of £1,176,819 from the Housing Infrastructure Fund (Marginal Viability) in 
respect of infrastructure works to be carried out in relation to Plot E7/E8 Chapel Street.   

Page 1

Agenda Item 3a



In order to draw down the grant from the Housing Infrastructure Fund (Marginal Viability) a 
grant funding agreement is required to be entered into between the Council and Homes 
England. 

The Council will then be onward funding the grant monies to its development and delivery 
partner English Cities Fund. 

The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the grant funding arrangements to deliver 
the Plot E7/E8 Chapel Street infrastructure works. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

Report of Strategic Director for Place to The City Mayor’s Property and Regeneration 
Briefing on 27th June 2019 – Plot E7/E8 Chapel Street, Salford

KEY DECISION:  Yes 
___________________________________________________________________

DETAILS:

1.0 Background

1.1

1.2

The Housing Infrastructure Fund (HIF) is a government capital grant programme 
to local authorities for the delivery of new physical infrastructure to unlock sites 
in the areas of greatest housing demand and help to deliver up to 100,000 new 
homes in England. 

In July 2017, DCLG announced a bidding process for the £2.3 billion for HIF 
which is divided into two parts:

HIF Marginal Viability Fund - to provide the ‘final piece of the jigsaw’ to bring 
forward infrastructure that is deliverable and costed that will unlock housing 
projects.

HIF Forward Funding – to provide financial assistance to a small number of 
strategic and high impact infrastructure projects. 

1.3

1.4

1.5

The Council has been successful in securing up to a maximum grant amount of 
£1,176,819 from the HIF Marginal Viability Fund (the HIF Grant) in respect of 
infrastructure works in relation to Plot E7/E8 Chapel Street (the Project). The 
Project is to be delivered by English Cities Fund (ECf).  

The Project forms part of the Salford Central Masterplan, and requires 
remediation, mitigation, services diversions and disconnections including sewer 
diversions, public realm works, the building over and around and securing of a 
BT Shaft Head and upgrading incoming electrical supplies and will unlock 178 
residential units and 8 commercial units in Salford city centre.  

Chapel Street is the historic heart of Salford City Centre and the scheme 
represents a further phase of the much needed regeneration of this important 
gateway to the Regional Centre.  

Page 2



1.6

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

ECf (a joint venture between Muse, L&G and Homes England) is to deliver the 
scheme and will receive an additional £6,437,848 of cross-subsidy from the 
Development Trust Account (DTA).  This was approved in a separate report on 
27th June 2019.    

Homes England Grant Funding Agreement 

In order to draw down the HIF Grant a grant funding agreement is required to be 
entered into between the Council and Homes England (the Homes England 
Grant Agreement).  

The Homes England Grant Agreement is in Homes England’s standard form. An 
overview of the terms are as follows: 

 HIF Grant – the funding is only to be used for an approved scope of 
infrastructure works as agreed within the grant agreement and is available to 
be drawn down until 30 March 2021. The overall project must be delivered 
by 29 September 2022.

 Claims for funding – the Council must submit a claim form and provide 
evidence of expenditure to be incurred / already incurred. The Council will 
work with ECf to pull together the necessary documentation in order to 
submit claims.  Section 151 officer sign-off is required on all claims.   

 Reporting - the Council is required to provide quarterly monitoring and 
progress reports in respect of the Project to Homes England. 

 Repayment / Clawback of funding – in certain circumstances Homes 
England may withhold payment of the HIF Grant and the Council may also 
be required to repay all or part of the HIF Grant these include: 

o the occurrence of an event of default on the Council’s part (such as a 
material breach of the agreement, failure to achieve a milestone or 
outputs, the funding is not spent of the Project) 

o if repayment or recovery is required under European Union state aid 
laws 

 Restriction on Title – Homes England require a restriction on title to the 
effect that no part of the site is to be disposed of without its consent. 

 Underspend – any project costs saved or recovered may be retained by the 
Council subject to Homes England’s consent and must be used for further 
housing delivery.  

In the event that the project is not delivered by the completion date or other 
conditions of the Homes England Grant Agreement are not met the Council 
could be deemed to be in breach and be liable to Homes England. However 
whilst there are a number of obligations on the Council under the Homes 
England Grant Agreement it is intended that the Council will pass these down to 
ECf under the proposed onward grant funding agreement.
 

3.0

3.1

ECF Onward Grant Funding Agreement

It is proposed that the Council will enter into an onward grant funding agreement 
with ECf which as a minimum passes on the Council’s obligations under the 
Homes England Grant Agreement as set out above. 

Page 3



3.2

3.3

4.0

4.1

4.2

ECf are required to provide the Council and Homes England with State Aid 
advice in relation to the proposed funding arrangements and delivery of the 
project. In the event that there is State Aid claw back challenge this risk will sit 
with ECf.

ECf are happy with the proposed terms of the agreement.  

Payments 

Payments will be made to SCC in quarterly instalments on the receipt of a valid 
claim form (with required supporting documentation), as well as evidence of 
progress from the most recent monitoring return provided by the local authority.

SCC will work with ECf to pull together the necessary documentation in order to 
submit claims.  Section 151 officer sign-off is required on all claims.   

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

 Salford 2025: A Modern Global City

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:

This scheme forms part of the Salford Central Development Framework.  The Development 
Framework was subject to extensive consultation over a three week period with a number of 
roadshow events and presentations taking place within that period. 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  Low

The obligations in the Grant Funding Agreement will be transferred to ECf via a back to back 
legal agreement.  

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Laura Gledhill, Principal Solicitor, Commercial Legal 
Team, Shared Legal Service

The Council’s shared legal service will provide advice and support to assist with the drafting 
of the legal agreements. It is proposed that any obligations on the Council under the HIF 
grant agreement from Homes England will be passed on to ECf under the onward funding 
agreement in order to protect the Council’s position as far as possible. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Natalie Birchall, ext 2316, 4/7/2019

Salford City Council has been successful in securing £1,176,819 from the Housing 
Infrastructure Fund (Marginal Viability) for Plot E7/E8 Chapel Street on behalf of English 
Cities Fund.  

Page 4



Pending approval of the Grant Funding Agreement between SCC and Homes England the 
council will draw down the grant, quarterly in arrears, working with ECF to prepare claims.

The grant will be paid to ECf to deliver the agreed infrastructure.  In order to protect the 
council’s interest all of the obligations under the Grant Funding Agreement will be passed to 
ECf in the form of a back to back agreement.   

A separate report was approved on the 27th June 2019, in which English Cities Fund (a joint 
venture between Muse, L&G and Homes England) is to deliver the scheme and will receive 
an additional £6,437,848 of cross-subsidy from the Development Trust Account (DTA).

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Jennifer Hilton, Category Manager, x.6241

There are no procurement implications.

HR IMPLICATIONS: N/A 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 

David Norbury, Urban Vision 

CONTACT OFFICERS: 

Ian Thompson, Principal Programme Manager Investment, 793 2415

Lyndsey Priestley, Project Manager, 793 3444

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  Ordsall 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Part 1
ITEM NO.

___________________________________________________________________

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE
___________________________________________________________________

PROPERTY AND REGENERATION BRIEFING  
ON 

12TH AUGUST 2019 
___________________________________________________________________

TITLE: Review of private rented sector – Langworthy, Weaste & Seedley 
___________________________________________________________________

RECOMMENDATION:

That the City Mayor,

1. Authorises the designation of a Selective Landlord Licensing Scheme, under 
Part 3 of the Housing Act 2004 in the Langworthy, Weaste & Seedley area 
(map of proposed area is contained within Annex 1) of Salford having regard 
to the evidence base contained within Annex 1, the consultation responses 
contained within Annex 2, the legislative requirements and non-statutory 
guidance; 

2. Authorises the proposed fee structure for the Langworthy, Weaste & Seedley 
Selective Landlord Licensing Scheme as detailed in section 5 of this report; 

3. Authorises the proposed Licence Conditions for the Langworthy, Weaste & 
Seedley Selective Landlord Licensing Scheme as detailed in Annex 3 
attached to this report; 

4. Authorises officers to carry out all necessary actions to publicise the 
designation of the area for Selective Landlord Licensing so as to comply with 
the requirements of the Housing Act 2004.

___________________________________________________________________

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

This report seeks approval to designate a Selective Landlord Licensing scheme, for 
a five year period, in the Langworthy, Weaste & Seedley area of Salford.  

Following the expiry in March 2018 of the most recent Selective Licensing scheme, 
officers have reviewed the impact of the scheme and based on local intelligence and 
officer knowledge and the collection of a rigorous evidence base parts of the 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3b



Langworthy and Weaste and Seedley wards have been identified as containing 
areas that are suitable for a further designation of Selective Landlord licensing. 

Whilst the proposed area has seen a rise in property prices they remain lower than 
the comparable area and the Salford average. Positive improvements have been 
made in reducing turnover in the private rented sector over the last five years 
however overall turnover within the private rented sector is still high, with occupiers 
changing properties approximately 4 times over a 5 year period, compared to the city 
average of 1. Short term empty property levels are double that of the comparable 
area and have a considerable impact on the area. The data suggests landlords are 
the main investor in property in the area moving towards converting properties to 
smaller type HMOs targeting single people most of who are in receipt of local 
housing allowance. Furthermore the rental levels being charged in the proposed 
area are much higher than the Local Housing Allowance rates.

In light of the review the council is satisfied that although conditions in the area 
improved during the life of the previous selective licensing schemes, the area 
remains affected by the blight of low housing demand when considered against the 
provisions of the legislation and relevant guidance.  

It is proposed that the designation is made on the basis that the criteria of low 
housing demand is met, as laid out in the Housing Act 2004, Part 3 and can be 
evidenced sufficiently to warrant a Selective Landlord Licensing designation.  
Officers are of the view that the making of the designation will, when combined with 
other measures taken in the area by the local housing authority (or by persons 
together with the local housing authority) bring about a reduction in or elimination of 
the blight of low demand which will contribute to the improvement of the social or 
economic conditions in the area.  

The introduction of such a scheme will complement the wider regeneration in the 
area that Salford City Council is helping to deliver.  Selective Licensing will address 
existing issues of poor property and tenancy management in privately rented 
accommodation.  The scheme will also ensure that new landlords investing in the 
designated area understand what is expected of them and deal promptly with any 
issues that may arise. The scheme will contribute to sustaining the strong community 
that previous investment in the area has worked hard to establish.

Along with an application for a licence, a landlord would be required to pay a licence 
application fee, per property. Approval is sought for the fee structure detailed within 
this report.  The proposed fee structure offers a reduction to landlords who are 
prompt in fulfilling their duties in applying for a licence.

When granted a licence, a landlord would be issued with a set of licence conditions 
which must be adhered to. The licence conditions clearly set out acceptable 
management arrangements. Approval is sought for these conditions.  Failure by a 
landlord to adhere to the conditions imposed under the Landlord Licence may result 
in a civil penalty for the landlord or a fine for the landlord and a criminal conviction if 
found guilty by a court.

Page 8



Approval is also sought for officers to carry out all necessary actions to publicise the 
designation of the area for Selective Landlord Licensing so as to comply with the 
requirements of the Housing Act 2004.
___________________________________________________________________

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

Selective Licensing designation approval for Seedley and Langworthy – report to 
Department for Communities and Local Government
Selective Licensing designation approval for Broughton – report to Communities and 
Local Government
Report to Lead Member for Housing September 2010, Selective Landlord Licensing 
– Charlestown and Lower Kersal
Report to Assistant Mayor for Environment, Selective Landlord Licensing – 
Langworthy, Weaste and Seedley
Report to Assistant Mayor for Environment, Selective Landlord Licensing – Barton 
and Eccles
Report to Assistant Mayor for Environment, Selective Landlord Licensing - 
Broughton
Department for Communities and Local Government guidance document (March 
2015) “Selective Licensing in the private rented sector – A guide for local authorities”
Report to Cabinet August 2017 - Review of private rented sector – Charlestown and 
Lower Kersal
___________________________________________________________________

KEY DECISION: Yes
___________________________________________________________________

DETAILS:

1.0 Background

1.1   The Housing Act 2004 received Royal Assent in April 2006 and gave Local 
Authorities the power, upon Secretary of State approval, to introduce 
Selective Licensing of individual private rented dwellings where the local 
authority considered it would benefit tenants and communities, in areas of low 
housing demand and/or where there are significant problems of anti-social 
behaviour linked directly to private landlords failing to take appropriate action 
to tackle these problems.  

1.2 Salford City Council embraced this opportunity and commenced a phased 
approach for the roll out of Selective Licensing. The initial phase began within 
the Langworthy and Seedley regeneration area, where Salford became the 
first local authority to be granted approval;  this scheme expired on 25th May 
2012.   Approval for the second phase saw a scheme in the Broughton area 
introduced in November 2009.  In September 2010, the third phase saw the 
introduction of a scheme in parts of the Charlestown and Lower Kersal area.

Page 9



1.3 On 1 April 2010, what was then called the Department for Communities and 
Local Government (‘DCLG’) advised that there would be a change to the 
approval process for Selective Licensing schemes; a General Consent would 
become operative and no further schemes would be approved by the DCLG.  
The General Consent allows Local Authorities to introduce Selective Licensing 
schemes without having to seek DCLG approval, although the evidential 
criteria to justify a scheme remain the same.  

1.4 On 27 November 2012, the Selective Licensing scheme for Langworthy, 
Weaste and Seedley was approved by the City Council under the General 
Consent followed by the approval of a scheme on 17 October 2014, for the 
Barton and Eccles area and a scheme approved on 13 October 2015 in parts 
of the Broughton area.

1.5 On 1 April 2015, a new General Approval came into force. Local Authorities 
are now required to obtain confirmation from the Secretary of State for any 
selective licensing scheme which would cover more than 20% of their 
geographical area or that would affect more than 20% of the privately rented 
properties in the local authority area. Under these new arrangements if a local 
housing authority makes a designation that covers 20% or less of its 
geographical area or private rented properties, the scheme will not need to be 
submitted to the Secretary of State, provided the authority has consulted for at 
least 10 weeks on the proposed designation. 

1.6 The change to the General Approval also introduced additional criteria for 
making a selective licensing scheme.  A designation may now also be made if 
an area is experiencing poor property conditions, high levels of migration, high 
levels of deprivation or high levels of crime. A local authority may only make a 
designation on these new grounds if the area has a high proportion of 
property in the private rented sector. 

1.7     This proposal, both on its own, and when added to the existing designations in 
the city covers less than 20% of Salford’s geographical area and less than 
20% of the privately rented properties in the city.    The consultation period ran 
for a period of 10 weeks, and accordingly, the designation will not need to be 
submitted to the Secretary of State.

2.0      Summary of Evidence

2.1 Section 80 of the Housing Act 2004 states that a local authority may designate 
either the area of their district or an area of their district as subject to selective 
licensing where one or both of two sets of general conditions are satisfied in 
relation to the area (or any additional conditions specified in an order made by 
the Secretary of State).

2.2 The first set of general conditions are that the area is, or is likely to become, 
an area of low housing demand and that making a designation will, when 
combined with other measures taken in the area by the Local Housing 

Page 10



Authority, or by other persons together with the Local Housing Authority, 
contribute to the improvement of the social or economic conditions in the area.

2.3 When considering the low housing demand criteria, the following must be 
taken into account, amongst other matters - 

i) the value of residential premises in the area, in comparison to the value of 
similar premises in other areas which the authority consider to be comparable 
(whether in terms of types of housing, local amenities, availability of transport 
or otherwise), 
ii) the turnover of occupiers of residential premises;  
iii) the number of residential premises which are available to buy or rent and 
the length of time for which they remain unoccupied.

Guidance issued by the Department of Communities and Local Government in 
March 2015 also recommends that local housing authorities consider the 
general appearance of the locality and the number of boarded up shops and 
properties. Further, (amongst other matters) the guidance recommends that a 
scheme should state how it will address the problems associated with low 
demand in the designated area, for example, through imposing conditions 
relating to the management of properties. It must identify how the scheme will 
work in combination with other specified measures that the local housing 
authority is taking to combat those problems. It is important for local 
authorities to demonstrate how licensing will work in conjunction with existing 
initiatives and partnerships. It is also important for local housing authorities to 
consider some of the possible effects of making a designation and to include 
any risk assessment they may have carried out. Local authorities should also 
carefully consider any potential negative economic impact that licensing may 
have on their area – particularly the risk of increased costs to landlords who 
are already fully compliant with their obligations. 

2.6 Further, before a designation is made under section 80 of the Act, the 
authority must ensure that the exercise of the power is consistent with the 
authority’s overall housing strategy. The authority must also seek to adopt a 
co-ordinated approach in connection with dealing with homelessness, empty 
properties and anti-social behaviour both as regards combining selective 
licensing with other courses of action available to them and measures taken 
by other persons. 

2.7     Finally, an authority must not make a particular designation under section 80 
of the Act unless they have considered other courses of action available to 
them (of whatever nature) that might provide an effective means of achieving 
the objective/s that the designation would be intended to achieve and they 
consider that making the designation will significantly assist them to achieve 
the objective/s (whether or not they take any other course of action as well). 

2.8  This proposal to designate a Selective Licensing scheme within the 
Langworthy, Weaste & Seedley area is made on the basis that one of the 
general conditions can be satisfied, namely that of low housing demand.  

Page 11



2.9 Annex 1 of this report contains a map of the proposed area and theevidence 
base in support of the proposals.  The evidence has been reviewed (among 
other matters) against the requirements of both the Act and the DCLG 
guidance document “Selective licensing in the private rented sector”.

3.0 Consultation

3.1    Section 80 of the Housing Act 2004 states that before making a Selective 
Licensing designation, a local housing authority must take reasonable steps to 
consult persons who are likely to be affected by the designation and consider 
any representations made in accordance with the consultation and not 
withdrawn. In that regard, formal consultation commenced on 27 Feb 2019 
and closed on 8 May 2019.    

 
3.2   The Council has conducted consultation with the appropriate persons both 

within the proposed designated area and in the surrounding area. The Council 
has taken a number of steps to ensure that the consultation was widely 
publicised, using various channels of communication. This has included 
presentations at local community meetings, and a drop-in session held in the 
proposed area for landlords, managing agents, residents and stakeholders.  
The main consultation exercise involved the publication of a consultation 
document which provided a detailed explanation of the proposed designation 
and a questionnaire.  

3.3    The questionnaire was designed in accordance with best practice and mailed 
out (both by post and electronically) to over 5000 stakeholders along with a 
letter detailing how to access the consultation document. The purpose of this 
mail out was to provide information regarding the proposals to introduce 
Selective Licensing and to gauge opinion on the proposals. We also made it 
clear that stakeholders could respond in a number ways other than completing 
the questionnaire.  This included emailing us, writing to us, telephoning us or 
visiting us to provide comments on the proposals.  A number of responses 
were received through these routes.

3.4 The mail out included residents/tenants within the proposed designated area 
and in the surrounding area.  All identified landlords and managing agents 
within the proposed designation, all accredited landlords and all managing 
agents regardless of whether they would be affected by the proposals were 
also sent questionnaires.  The questionnaire was sent to all local business in 
and around the proposed area, along with known Landlord Associations and 
the Citizens Advice Bureau. The consultation and questionnaire was also 
made available online throughout the consultation period and was emailed to 
all known landlords and managing agents identified in the Private Sector 
Housing team’s databases. 

3.5 The Local ward Councillors were also invited to comment on the proposals.  
Those Councillors that replied to the consultation, expressed support for the 
scheme. 

Page 12



4.0 Summary of results

4.1    In total 165 individual responses were received. This consisted of 60% who 
identified themselves as owner occupiers, 20% either landlords or managing 
agents, 6.7% who were tenants of landlords,9.1% were tenants of registered 
providers and 4.2% were unknown. There was a notable disparity between 
the responses received from owner occupiers and landlords who rented 
property in the area.

4.2     In particular:
 19.4% of landlords and managing agents who responded to the 

consultation agreed with the council’s proposal to introduce Selective 
Licensing into the designation area, however 70.5% of residents who 
responded (all tenure) agreed with the proposal.

 Generally, the majority of landlords and managing agents who responded 
disagreed with every statement on low demand, despite there being clear 
statistical factual evidence contained within the consultation document 

 60.5% of residents who responded (all tenure) agreed that the value of 
properties in the proposed area was lower than the comparable area.  
However only 25% of landlords and managing agents who responded to 
the consultation agreed with this position. 

 16.7% of landlords and managing agents who responded believed there 
was a high turnover of tenants in the area; however 80.6% of owner 
occupiers believed there was a high turnover of tenants. 

 78.3% of residents who responded (all tenure) agree that the high 
turnover rate of private tenants in the area contributes to problems in the 
proposed area. Only 16.7% of landlords and agents who responded 
agreed with this statement.

 When asked about whether the number of Houses of Multiple Occupation 
(HMO’s) is growing in the proposed area, 81.4% of Owner Occupiers who 
replied to the consultation agreed.  However, despite clear evidence 
presented in the report that this is the case only 33.3% of landlords 
agreed. 

 When asked about the problems that badly managed private rented 
properties cause in the proposed area, there was a significant amount of 
negative comments about the area which, were made by respondents 
which related to rubbish dumping, littering, the area being run down with 
properties not maintained and parking issues.  

 16 landlords/agents called for some/all properties or streets to be 
excluded and in most cases the effect of the requests from 
landlords/agents would be to exclude their own properties from the area to 
be designated.

 13 responses from residents asked for the proposed area of selective 
licensing to be extended. 

4.4 During the formal consultation, consultees also had the opportunity to 
comment upon the proposed fee structure.  The majority of responses from 
landlords and managing agents in relation to selective licence fees wanted to  
see a fee policy that included the following:

Page 13



 A reduced fee for landlords who apply early.
 A reduced fee for landlords with more than one property.
 A payment instalment option of 12-24months

The Housing Act 2004 allows Local Authorities when fixing licence fees to 
take into account all costs incurred in carrying out their functions however a 
licence may not relate to more than one house.  A landlord is charged on a 
per property basis, with a reduced fee offered to those landlords who have 
more than one property. 

Amongst residents however, there was an overwhelming response that no 
discounts should be offered to landlords and the majority felt that no payment 
instalment option should be offered followed by significant number agreeing to 
a 12 month plan option.

4.5 A written response was received from the Residential Landlords Association. 
The organisation disagreed with the principals of licensing, however they did 
not challenge the Low Demand evidence. They also raised comments 
regarding the fees, the powers nationally, what they considered to be the 
bureaucracy of schemes; their view that licensing schemes were being 
misused to fund ‘cash strapped’ housing enforcement services. 

4.6 Officers have responded to the Residential Landlords Association strongly to 
refute their statement “little evidence that licensing scheme improve housing 
standards” and note that in this broad statement they did not provided any 
evidence which supports this claim.  The Residential Landlords Association 
were advised to note that this proposal is made of the grounds of Low 
Housing Demand and not the poor property condition grounds.

4.7 The Citizens Advice bureau responded with full support for the proposals, 
stating they very much welcome the proposals and can see the benefits of 
selective licensing in the City.

4.8   Officers have considered all representations made in accordance with the 
consultation and have provided everyone who contributed with a written 
response. Annex 2 of this report contains the full responses to the 
consultation.

4.9 Careful consideration has been given to all responses and representations 
received.

                                                                                                    

5.0 Proposals

5.1      Designation Area 
During the consultation exercise, opinions were sought both on the low 
demand general set of conditions as well as the proposed boundary of the 
selective licensing area.  

Page 14



5.2 A number of residents had strong views on the proposed boundary and made 
comments with regards to extending the area to a citywide scheme and 
landlords equally had strong views on reducing the boundary of the scheme, 
many of these proposals removed their properties from the proposals.  

5.3 We have fully considered all the comments received but do not propose to 
make any amendments to the boundary of the proposed area following the 
consultation. The area proposed in this report, reflects the area previously 
designated for selective licensing.  A map of the proposed area can be found 
in Annex 1. 

5.4      Licence Fee & Licence Fee reduction 
Salford has always sought to set fees at a level that would make schemes 
self-funding.  Recent case law (Hemming v Westminster) clearly states that 
the fee should only cover the cost of administrating and monitoring a Selective 
Licensing designation and we have drawn on experience of operating other 
selective licensing schemes, to propose a fee at a level that makes the 
scheme self financing. 

We have taken into consideration our new on-line application process and the 
proposed fee reflects the reduction in administration and monitoring costs. 
The base fee we propose is £600 and details of licence fee reductions are 
detailed in the table below.

We have fully considered the concerns of landlords and managing agents 
regarding the impacts of the proposed fee and with this in mind we propose to 
offer the most flexible payment terms to minimise the financial burden on 
landlords. The cost is based upon the projected cost of delivering the scheme 
for its full five year duration.

          
Date application received Proposed fee – Accredited 

landlord
Proposed fee – non 
Accredited landlord

3 months prior to scheme 
commencing

£385  (1st application)
£360  (subsequent 
applications)

£415 (1st application)
£390 (subsequent 
applications)

3 months from scheme start 
date

£465  (1st application)
£440  (subsequent 
applications)

Applications received 
between month 3 and 6 
following scheme start date 

£515  (1st application)
£490 (subsequent 
applications)

5.5      Payment Terms

The following payment period options will be offered, interest free - 

Page 15



 Full Payment upfront;
 12 Monthly direct debits;
 25% upfront and 23 monthly direct debits.
 50% upfront and 11 monthly direct debits

6.0      Licence Conditions

6.1    Schedule 4 of the Housing Act 2004, specifies the following 5 statutory licence 
conditions to be issued with each selective licence - 
 To produce to the Local Housing Authority an annual gas safety certificate
 To keep electrical appliances and furniture made available by the landlord 

in a safe condition and to supply to the authority, on demand, a declaration 
of the safety of such appliances

 To ensure that smoke alarms are installed in the house and to keep them 
in proper working order and to supply to the authority, on demand, a 
declaration as to the condition and positioning of such alarms

 The Licence holder to supply the occupier of the house a written statement 
of the terms on which they occupy it. 

6.2  The Act also states that “A licence may include such conditions as the local 
housing authority consider appropriate for regulating the management, use or 
occupation of the house concerned”. 

6.3 The licensing team propose to add 42 discretionary licence conditions which 
can be found in Annex 3.  

 

7.0 Conclusion
7.1 Having given due regard to the responses received in the formal consultation 

on the proposal to introduce Selective Landlord Licensing in parts of 
Langworthy, Weaste & Seedley , officers are satisfied that the proposed 
Selective Landlord Licensing area meets the requirements of the Act with 
regard to demonstrating low housing demand and that making a designation 
will, when combined with other measures taken within the area by the local 
housing authority or other persons, contribute to the improvement of the social 
and economic conditions in the area.  The authority has also taken the 
requirements of section 80 and 81 of the Act into account and the non–
statutory guidance referred to above. 

7.2 Officers are satisfied that there is no practical and beneficial alternative to the 
Landlord Licensing Scheme.  Officers are also satisfied that designating a 
selective licensing scheme in the area will significantly assist the Council in 
achieving the objectives of the scheme as laid out in Annex 1.  

Page 16



7.3 Officers are satisfied that the making of this designation will make a significant 
contribution to addressing the continuing issues of low housing demand and 
standards of management within the private rented sector within this area.

 7.4 The progress, which has already been made by the Licensing Team, has 
been recognised nationally for innovation and has been highlighted by the 
Audit Commission as an example of best practice in this field.

___________________________________________________________________

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Community Plan, Housing Strategy, Crime and Disorder 
reduction Partnership
___________________________________________________________________

COMMUNITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:-  
A Community Impact Assessment has been completed for this proposal which has 
been reviewed by the Equalities team and will be published online.  The impact of 
the scheme has been fully considered and through the formal consultation, it found 
no disproportionate impact on anyone in respect of their protected characteristics. 
The scheme will have a positive impact on residents in the proposed area.  All 
landlords’ needs are fully considered during the Landlord Licensing process. 
Landlords are provided with the opportunity to have an appointment with an officer 
from the Landlord Licensing Team to obtain assistance and advice in completing 
their licence application forms.  All landlords are provided with details of how to 
obtain licensing documentation in a language which they understand. Where 
appropriate, an Officer from the Licensing Team can attend a home/office visit. 
___________________________________________________________________

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Low
The Council believes it has made a robust case for the designation of a Selective 
Licensing Scheme.  The consultation shows that there is support for the scheme 
amongst local residents; and some local landlords.
 
The majority of landlords and agents who responded to the consultation did not 
support the proposal. 

Any decision that the City Council makes with regards to this proposal could be 
subject to legal challenge.
___________________________________________________________________

HR COMMENTS Supplied by Catherine Sharples, Strategic HR and OD Manager                                                        
Ext: 8607

Selective Licensing is self financing and the proposed fee structure has been 
produced to generate revenue to cover staffing and other costs over the life of the 
scheme.

Based upon experience of previous schemes, it is anticipated that the majority or 
work involved in setting up and operating the scheme will take place in the first two 

Page 17



years of the scheme before reducing when the scheme is established and the 
majority of licensed issues.

Current staffing levels can accommodate the delivery of this scheme if maintained.

A further review of staffing levels will be undertaken after 18 months of the proposed 
declaration to ensure that the right level of staffing is in place for operating the 
scheme to its end date.
___________________________________________________________________

SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
The Government’s intention is that Landlord Licensing will be self funding over the 
five year licensable period. The initial set up costs will be funded from the Private 
Sector Housing Capital Enforcement budget. 

___________________________________________________________________

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by Melinda Edwards                 Tel: 0161 219 6286 

Comments: As detailed in the report, the Housing Act 2004 (‘the Act’) makes 
provision for the designation of areas of selective licensing provided certain 
requirements as detailed in the Act are met. In this report, the Council seeks to rely 
upon the first set of general conditions set out in section 80 (3) of the Act to 
designate an area of Langworthy, Weaste & Seedley as subject to selective 
licensing, namely those concerning low housing demand. 

In order to make a designation under the first general set of conditions, the Council 
must be satisfied that the area is, or is likely to become an area of low housing 
demand; and that making the designation will, when combined with other measures 
in the area by the council or parties together with the council, contribute to the 
improvement of the social or economic conditions of the area. 

The Council must comply with the requirements of the Act and associated guidance 
when seeking to designate an area as subject to selective licensing on the above 
grounds. These requirements relate to both procedural and substantive/evidential 
matters. For example, the Council ensure that any exercise of their power to 
designate is consistent with the Council’s overall housing strategy and must seek to 
adopt a co-ordinated approach in connection with dealing with homelessness, empty 
properties and anti-social behaviour as detailed in section 81 of the Act. Further, the 
Council must consider other available courses of action that might achieve the 
objective that the designation was intended to achieve and must consider that the 
designation will significantly assist them to achieve this objective before making a 
designation. Non-statutory government guidance has been produced which explains 
the criteria for making a selective licensing designation and discusses the evidence 
needed to support a designation. It also sets out, amongst other matters, what a 
local authority would expect a scheme to deliver in terms of the economic and social 
conditions of the designated area and how during the period of the designation this 
will be evaluated. 

Page 18



Importantly, the Act requires that the Council consult with persons likely to be 
affected by the designation and consider any representations made in accordance 
with the consultation and not withdrawn before making a designation. 

Any consultation carried out by a local authority must carried out properly, in 
accordance with the requirements of the relevant legislation/guidance/case law/best 
practice and at a stage where there is scope to influence the policy outcome. All 
representations must be considered fully in the decision making process and 
published/made available to the local community.  A failure to consult properly may 
result in legal challenge to any ultimate decision by way of judicial review 
proceedings. The report confirms that a consultation exercise has been undertaken 
and that the responses have informed the Council’s proposals accordingly.

When exercising its functions, the Council must comply with the public sector 
equality duty as set out in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. In that regard, 
appropriate impact assessments should be undertaken to measure and record 
compliance with this duty. 

The Council has been granted General Approval powers which enable it to designate 
areas of selective licensing without recourse to the Secretary of State, subject to the 
satisfaction of both the procedural and substantive/evidential requirements of the 
Act.
___________________________________________________________________

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by Paul Guest (Finance Officer) -  925 1136

The Selective Licensing Scheme is a self-financing scheme. Costs for administrating 
and monitoring the scheme will be recovered through the licence fees charged to 
landlords. As the scheme covers a five year licensing period then adjustments will be 
made in the revenue account to reflect the income over the course of the scheme

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: Community Health and Social Care, 
Planning 
___________________________________________________________________

CONTACT OFFICER: Sarah Hughes & Anne Arcus TEL. NO: 3087/ 2249
___________________________________________________________________

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): Langworthy, Weaste & Seedley 
___________________________________________________________________

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Annex 2 The Evidence Base

The proposed Selective Licensing area is located within central Salford and covers parts of two 
wards, namely the Langworthy ward and the Weaste and Seedley ward.  The area in question is a 
high density private sector residential area where over 61% of the private stock is privately rented. 

As detailed above, the Act does not require the licensing of properties subject to tenancies granted by 
registered social landlords or councils which accounts for approximately 350 properties within the 
proposed area. There are approximately 760 properties which have been identified as privately rented 
and which would require a licence if the proposals were introduced.   

The proposal for Langworthy, Weaste & Seedley both on its own, and when added to the existing 
designations in Salford covers less than 20% of Salford’s geographical area and less than 20% of the 
privately rented properties in the City (as shown in the table below).  The Council also intends to 
consult for a period of 10 weeks.  Accordingly, if the proposed scheme is authorised following the 
consultation period, it will not have to be submitted to the Secretary of State for approval.

Total number of rented properties in the City* 19033
Proposed Langworthy Weaste and Seedley Scheme 760
Eccles and Barton scheme 589
Broughton scheme 787
Charlestown and Lower Kersal Scheme 606

                             *Source - Salford City Councils Private House Condition Survey 2016

Low Demand 

What is Low Housing Demand? 

The Act and Guidance identify the following factors which (among other matters) the Council should 
consider when deciding if an area is, or is likely to become an area of low housing demand: 

 The value of residential premises in the area, in comparison to the value of similar 
premises in other areas which the Council consider to be comparable (whether in 
terms of types of housing, local amenities, availability of transport or otherwise); 

 The turnover of occupiers of residential premises (in both rented and owner occupied 
properties); 

 The number of residential premises which are available to buy or rent, and the length 
for which they remain unoccupied; 

 The general appearance of the locality and the number of boarded up shops and 
properties.

Selection of comparable area 

When deciding if an area is suffering from low demand, the Council must take certain factors into 
account. One such factor is the value of residential premises in the area, in comparison to the value 
of similar premises in other areas which the authority considers to be comparable (whether in terms of 
type of housing, local amenities and availability of transport or otherwise). 

On previous designations areas of Broughton and Eccles were comparable areas. Both these areas 
now have selective licence schemes in place. The comparable area has been chosen around the 
Station Road area of the Swinton North ward. 

This area has been chosen for a number of reasons which are set out below: 

Page 21



 Types of housing – both areas contain significant numbers of terraced properties. 
 Types of housing – both areas contain a number of terraced properties that have been 

converted into Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO’s).
 Local amenities - linear shopping with some accommodation above, i.e. flats above shops, 

along Langworthy Road, which can be compared to Station Road in the comparable area.
 Local amenities - both areas are within travelling distance of Salford University, Media City & 

Salford Royal Hospital and as such are popular with students /young professionals
 Availability of transport - both areas are close to major roads and have good transport links, 

such as direct bus routes. 

It is simply not possible to have a comparable area which is identical in terms of geographical size 
and containing the same number of property type. However, the Council considers the Station Road 
area to be a comparable area when considering the factors listed within the legislation and 
Government guidance.

Tenure of proposed area

The most recent government figures states that nationally the private rented sector currently makes 
up 20.5% of the total housing stock in England.1 The current estimate of the proportion of privately 
rented properties in Salford stands at 21 %, which is higher than the national average. There has 
been a significant increase in the Private Rented Stock in Salford with an increase of 108% since 
2001 2   demonstrating the scale at which the private rented sector operates across Salford. 

National Census data 2001-2011 highlights that nationally Salford has the highest rate of growth of 
Private Rented Sector at 67%, which is more than Greater Manchester at 62.6% and England & 
Wales at 50.8% over that 10 year period.3

The proposed area currently has a private rented sector of 48% which is more than double the 
national average. The owner occupation level is 30% and has remained at this level since 2012 - this 
indicates an oversupply of privately rented accommodation in the area. Furthermore it suggests a low 
demand for owner occupiers moving to the area and an unstable housing market when compared to 
the national average of owner occupation at 62.4%.

Source - Salford Council Tax data

Houses in Multiple Occupation HMO’s (shared houses)

There has been a dramatic increase in HMO’s in the proposed area with 29 at the end of 2012 to 119 
at the end of March 2018, which is a 410% increase in 5 years and is continuing to grow. 

1 English Housing Survey 2016 to 2017: headline report
2 2001ONS - subnational dwelling stock by tenure estimates, England 2012-2015 - released Dec 2017
3 Census 2001,2011 Page 22



Despite relatively low property values in the area, it would appear despite the previous scheme that 
first time buyers are not being attracted to live in this area.  There is investment, but this is from 
landlords who are moving towards conversions of traditional 2/3bed terraced property into smaller 
type HMOs.  

In HMOs you have a mix of different people living under one roof, the tenants may not know each 
other beforehand, and managing such properties can be complex.  

Management challenges for landlords can include:

 The need for extra safety measures to be regularly undertaken such as ensuring the fire 
alarm system is routinely inspected; 

 The need to keep communal areas clean and clear of obstruction;
 The need to monitor occupancy at property to ensure property does not become 

overcrowded;
 The need to ensure that enough bins and provided and that tenants know when and how to 

dispose of waste correctly; 
 higher levels of ASB;
 The need to manage disputes between tenants. With HMO’s, the tenants may not know 

each other before moving in and as such there’s more chance for tensions to run high and 
personalities to clash

 finding new tenants –undertaking comprehensive reference exercises to ensure new 
tenants will get along together;

 increased wear & tear on property & equipment – requiring more maintenance and regular 
inspections. 

There is strong demand for single rooms, due to a general shortage of this type of accommodation 
across the City and explains the increase in small HMO’s in this area.  In that regard, there are 
currently over 4522 people on the Council’s waiting list who are eligible for single room 
accommodation).  

Whilst Landlord Licensing does not limit the spread of small non-mandatory HMOs, and we are not 
seeking to do this as there is strong demand for single rooms, licensing does give additional options 
for dealing with management issues in licensed properties of this type.

The graph below shows the number of properties converted to HMOs during the last Selective 
Licensing scheme. 

Graph 4.1 Number of HMOs in the proposed area

20102011201220132014201520162017*2018
0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

No of HMO's in Proposed 
Area

No of HMO's in Proposed Area

N
o.

 o
f H

M
O

's

Page 23



*source – Salford Council Tax data, selective & mandatory license issued data

Whilst this investment is positive and is welcomed in principle, the impact of this emerging trend 
needs to be understood and responded to accordingly.  Although significant improvements have been 
made in improving property value, rent levels and reducing turnover, data for the proposed area 
highlights that owner occupation has remained stagnant. The level of demand for people wishing to 
buy property and move to the area has not improved.  Anecdotally, residents report the reasons for 
this as being down to the increasing number of HMOs in the area, and the belief that this attracts 
transient tenants who are there for a short period of time which they believe contributes to issues 
such as anti-social behaviour and environmental crime. 

Anecdotal evidence from residents who have contacted the Council (which we will seek to test during 
the consultation process) regularly refers to the increasing number of HMOs in the area as the main 
reason for considering a move out of the area.  Further concerns from residents relate to 
overcrowding, anti-social behaviour, environmental issues and parking.   Unless effectively 
addressed, these concerns regarding the impact of HMOs will act to undermine confidence in the 
housing market, adding further imbalance to the area resulting in further reductions in owner 
occupation. 

Value of residential premises 

The national housing market in general has seen a steady increase of house prices over the last 5 
years and both the proposed and comparable areas are following this trend of average house prices 
slowly increasing over the same period.

The demand in the property market is made up of two competing groups; those looking for a home 
and,  an an excessive number looking for an investment. In Salford and the proposed area it’s the 
latter which, is evidenced by the significant growth in the Private Rented Sector as highlighted in Part 
1. Investor purchases in the city and the proposed area are reducing the number of properties 
available to home seekers and driving prices upwards.

In 2013, the average sale price for all property types was £78,597 in the proposed area where in the 
comparable area it was considerably higher at £96,651 and the Salford city average was £131,419. 
Since then there has been a consistent increase during the 5 years of the licensing scheme, with the 
gap closing between the proposed area and the comarable area. However. at the end of the last 
licensing scheme sale prices in the proposed area remained below the comparable area and still 
some £39,236 below the Salford average.

In the city, Salford’s average terraced property price in 2017 was 16.1% higher than the proposed 
area indicating a considerable gap.  This is reflective of the investor purchases and the rapid growth 
of the private rented sector.

The predominate property type within the proposed and comparable area are terraced properties, the 
average sale prices for this property type are detailed below.

Page 24



Graph 4.2 Average sale price – terraced properties

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
£70,000.00

£75,000.00

£80,000.00

£85,000.00

£90,000.00

£95,000.00

£100,000.00

£105,000.00

£110,000.00

£115,000.00

proposed area
comparable area

Average sale price - terraced properties

The graph above shows that at the beginning of the last scheme the gap in average sale prices for 
terraced properties was significant. The terraced house prices began to increase in 2014 but the gap 
between the proposed and comparable area increases in 2015. There are then 2 sharp increases in 
the proposed area in 2016 and 2017. This correlates with the evidence of the dramatic increase in the 
private rented sector and HMO’s.

The type of housing stock in the proposed area consists of a large number of 3-bed family terraced 
properties; this makes them very well-suited for conversion into small HMOs. This factor has made 
them attractive to investors, which is evidenced by the percentage of the private rented sector in the 
proposed area. Furthermore this in turn has driven property prices upwards and reduced the number 
of properties available for home owners. There is a danger that the housing market in the proposed 
area will be saturated with rented properties. This rapid growth of the sector has created problems in 
the area related to rising levels of anti-social behaviour, such as fly-tipping, rubbish in front gardens, 
and excessive noise. Reports concerning these types of issue have increased since the last scheme 
ended. 

While the majority of landlords take their responsibilities seriously and provide much needed housing 
in the area, a significant minority of negligent or criminal landlords exploit vulnerable tenants by letting 
out cramped, unsuitable and in some cases dangerous properties. This undermines the whole 
profession and has a real human cost for individuals, families and the wider community.

Turnover of occupiers of residential premises 

The data used for assessing turnover of residential premises has been sourced from Council Tax 
records. The data has been analysed to show turnover rates for owner occupied properties, privately 
rented properties (PRS) and registered provider (RP) properties within the proposed area of selective 
licensing. 

The data below shows turnover (i.e. the number of times a new Council Tax record has been created 
due to a person or household moving home), split by tenure over the last five years. For example, in 
2017, 95 owner occupied households moved into properties in the proposed area (out of a total 
number of 484 owner occupied properties). However, in the same year and same area 390 private 
tenant households moved into properties in the proposed area (out of a total number of 760 private 
rented properties).

*Source: HM Land Registry price paid data

Page 25



It is to be expected that there would be a higher turnover rate amongst tenants than owner occupiers, 
reflecting the flexibility which is one of the strengths of the rented sector. 

Table 4.3 Turnover of occupiers 

 
Owner 
Occupied PRS RSL

Total (excluding 
business)

Percentage Change 
in PRS stock only

Total No. of identified 
properties in licensing 
area 484 760 350 1594  
YEAR      
2013 114 819 204 1137 108%
2014 112 460 164 736 61%
2015 125 851 180 1156 112%
2016 151 671 177 999 88%
2017 95 390 89 574 51%
Total 597 3191 814  420%

PRS stock only 
equates to more 
than 4.2 changes of 
occupant per 
property over 5 
years

*source – Salford Council Tax records

Positive improvements have been made in reducing turnover in the private rented sector over the last 
five years. In 2013, 108% of private rented tenants moved home whereas in 2017, it was down to 
51%. Although there will be significant variation between individual properties, this means that the 
average length of a private tenancy in the area is increasing from approximately 12 months in 2013 to 
approaching 2 years by the end of the previous scheme.

This proposed area offers lower rents than across the city, low house prices and the investment in 
community facilities, however overall turnover within the private rented sector is still high, with 
occupiers changing properties approximately 4 times over a 5 year period, compared to the city 
average of 1.  

As detailed in Annex 1, the number of private rented properties in the proposed area and across the 
city has grown over the life of the previous licensing scheme, yet despite private tenants having a 
greater choice in the area, the average tenancy length has increased which suggests tenants are not 
simply staying in a property because they have nowhere else to go.

It is clear to see that over the last five years positive progress has been made in reducing turnover in 
the rented sector in the proposed area, however, there is still work to be done. The turnover rate for 
privately rented properties in the proposed area remains far higher than for other tenures in the area 
and over twice the whole city average. 

By continuing to improve management standards and the social and economic conditions of the area, 
turnover in the private rented sector should continue to reduce and stabilise. Reducing turnover rates 
is a positive outcome not only for landlords but also for residents.  Landlords benefit from reduced 
void times and re-letting costs, whereas residents see positive outcomes as it reduces the likelihood 
of anti-social behaviour that is often associated with unoccupied properties and reduces the likelihood 
of vandalism/criminal damage that can lead to properties becoming long-term empty properties.

Page 26



The number of residential premises which are available to buy or rent, and the property type

The private rented sector in this area has seen a dramatic change over the last 5 years.  Factors 
influencing these changes have been the introduction of Welfare reforms such as the benefit cap, the 
introduction of Universal Credit and the ever growing housing list.  With affordability being a 
significant issue, this has resulted in an increase in demand for single room tenancies and shared 
living. Landlords & investors have responded to this, demonstrated by a rapid growth in the private 
sector and small HMO properties. 

The following information is taken from data sources in July 2018, and shows the number of 
properties being advertised for rent, the average monthly advertised rent and the current LHA rate, in 
the proposed Licensing area. It is worth noting that rental properties are marketed locally, for 
example, on boards in windows and are let before they reach wider media sources such as Zoopla 
and Rightmove. With that in mind the data collated is only a snapshot of what was available at a 
specific date.

The rental levels being charged in the proposed area are much higher than the Local Housing 
Allowance rates. The table indicates that the majority of properties available to rent are individual 
rooms within a HMO. It is worth noting that although there were only 37 rooms within HMO’s to rent at 
that time; the total number of rooms within those shared HMO properties (if they had all been 
available for rent) was 157 in total. Of the properties available for rent 14 of them were advertised as 
shared properties, 39 adverts were for 1 room and 5 were advertised as student accommodation. 
Please note there were some properties available to rent where it was difficult to confirm whether they 
were shared or not.

Table 4.4 Properties available for rent

Type of HMO
Number 
Available

Average monthly 
rent

LHA Rate (4 
weekly)

Single room rate **37  £          390.00  £        268.80 
2 bed share house 2  £          716.66  £        479.92 
3 bed share house 6  £          969.17  £        533.28 
4 bed share house 7  £       1,396.00  £        745.88 
5 bed share house 5  £       1,661.67  £        745.88 
6 bed share house 2  £       2,547.50  £        745.88 
7 bed share house 1  £       3,943.00  £        745.88 

*source – Zoopla properties available for rent
**the total number of single rooms in HMO’s if available would be 157

It is clear from the above data that the average monthly rent for a HMO is considerably higher than 
the current Local Housing Allowance rate.  

A typical 3-bed house in the proposed area rented to a family would attract a rent of around £600 per 
calendar month, when you compare this to a typical 3 bed house rented as a 4 bedsit style HMO 
attracting a total rent of around £1500, it goes someway to explaining the inflated rental values in the 
proposed area.

This indicates a significant change in this area; the number of HMOs (shared houses) has increased 
considerably and now represents a major housing market in the area. 

As previously cited, it would appear that first time buyers are not being attracted to live in this area.  
There is investment, but this is from landlords who are moving towards conversions of traditional 
2/3bed terraced property into smaller type HMOs.  

Page 27



While the majority of landlords take their responsibilities seriously and provide much needed housing 
in the area, a significant minority of negligent or criminal landlords exploit vulnerable tenants by letting 
out cramped, unsuitable and in some cases dangerous properties. This undermines the whole 
profession and has a real human cost for individuals, families and the wider community.

Appearance of the locality – empty properties 

Empty properties can have a considerable impact on an area - 
 Attracting anti-social behaviour, fly tipping and vandalism;
 Causing blight and having a negative impact on the area;
 They are a lost resource to the community at a time of limited housing supply;
 They can cause a depreciation of housing values.

Once abandoned, properties can be subject to a downward spiral of vandalism, fire setting, drug use 
and other community related problems. The ultimate responsibility for keeping a property secure lies 
with the property owner.

The following data has been collected from Council Tax records at ward level and shows that the 
number of empty properties across both wards. In the proposed area, there are a significantly higher 
number of properties empty for up to 1 year, than the comparable area. 

The data below indicates that the demand for properties in the proposed area is still lower than its 
comparable area as significantly more properties remain empty for up to 1 year period. In fact the 
numbers of empty properties in the proposed area have fluctuated over the last 5 years and are now 
higher than in 2013
Graph 4.5 Private sector properties empty for up to 1 year 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

Proposed Area
Comparable Area

Private sector properties empty for up to 1 year

*source – Salford empty property data

Appearance of locality - environmental crime complaints

During the previous scheme, nearly half the reports of environmental crime, made to the City Council, 
related to privately rented properties and/or tenants who were failing to comply with correct 
procedures.  This volume of complaints regarding privately rented properties is largely reflected by 
the change in the housing market, high turnover rates & a sharp increase in HMO’s in the area. 

The correlation between privately rented properties and higher occurrence of environmental crime 
would appear to indicate that households living in such properties either have a lower awareness of 

Page 28



refuse collection arrangements and expectations of behaviour or feel such a low connection to the 
wider community that they choose not to comply. This presents significant challenges in terms of 
securing community cohesion and generating confidence in the local housing market.

Hotspot areas with significantly high numbers of privately rented properties have been identified from 
our data sources as well as from reports made through local community groups. Evidence of this can 
be found in Annex 2. Since the previous scheme ended the problems reported appear to have 
increased. For example, 25% of the properties on Edmund Street are privately rented yet 95.1% of 
the complaints related to these private rented properties. 

A selective licensing scheme has and will enable the team to work with landlords and the community 
to deal quickly with these complaints and to bring about a change in both landlord and tenant 
behaviour.

Since the scheme ended, residents continue to refer complaints of environmental crime to the team, 
and regularly complain that the appearance of locality in the area has become worse since the 
scheme ended. 

 Selective licensing helps to deal with these issues through effective enforcement of licence 
conditions.  Landlords are required to ensure tenants have adequate bins at the start of the tenancy, 
they have the relevant key to the alley gates, they are provided with information regarding bin day in a 
language they understand.  Landlords are also required to challenge their tenants who are not 
obeying the rules with regards to refuse disposal, by issuing tenancy warnings or providing further 
information or advice on this issue. 

Other Factors

The evidence collated in Section 4 considers all the factors that indicate the proposed area is 
suffering from low demand, however it is important to note that others factors were also considered. 
These are outlined in the sections below.

Anti-Social Behaviour

Reported anti-social behaviour reported to the Council’s ASB Team has reduced over the life of the 
current licensing scheme; however, as the graph below demonstrates, it remains higher in the private 
rented sector than in other tenures.

Graph 5.1 Complaints of anti-social behaviour 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
0.00

20.00

40.00

60.00

80.00

100.00

120.00

% PRS
% OO
% RSL

Complaints of Anti-social behaviour

*source – Salford Anti-social behaviour data

Page 29



Levels of Crime 

Crime deprivation (the risk to persons & victimisation based on recorded violent crimes, burglaries, 
thefts & criminal damage) is reported at ward level and crime deprivation is very concentrated around 
Langworthy, however the rest of the city has relatively low levels of crime deprivation.4

Analysis from Salford’s Crime and Disorder Team confirms the above with general crime increasing 
over the 5 years in the both the wards of Langworthy and Weaste & Seedley. 

Levels of Deprivation

Salford’s index of multiple deprivation report5 collates data on a ward level and in 2015 Langworthy is 
number 1 and is still the most deprived ward, whilst Weaste & Seedley has declined and moved to 
rank 8th from 9th. 

There are relatively moderate pockets of housing deprivation (barriers to housing and services) in 
Ordsall, Langworthy, Irwell Riverside, and Pendlebury.  As mentioned above, crime deprivation is 
very concentrated around Langworthy, with smaller less severe pockets of environment deprivation in 
Ordsall, Langworthy and West Barton

Poor Housing Conditions

When considering the general condition of an area, property condition is a key factor. Although 
Landlord Licensing does not directly address issues around the physical condition of properties, 
working as part of a co-ordinated approach allows the selective licensing team to call on additional 
resources, expertise and statutory powers where such issues are identified in properties as part of 
their work. 

Additionally, selective licensing will raise awareness amongst private landlords about property 
condition (although enforcement will rely on other statutory powers such as Housing Health and 
Safety Rating System (HHSRS)). 

Through the work of the landlord licensing team in the previous scheme, properties were identified 
which were in poor condition. The properties were referred to the Housing Standards team who 
undertook inspections of the properties under the Housing Health and Safety Rating System. 

The table below shows the number of inspections of privately rented properties, conducted by the 
team within the wards of Langworthy and Weaste & Seedley and shows the action taken in response 
to Category 1 or 2 hazards. 

The hazards identified were decreasing but started to increase in 2016 and then significantly 
accelerated during the last year of the last scheme. This can be linked to the large rise in the number 
of small scale HMO’s not being up to standard, as supported by evidence when these properties have 
been inspected. This suggests landlords have not sought advice on standards for example on fire 
safety and amenities, further to this they can be poorly managed. Resident’s comments largely reflect 
poorly managed properties with little regard to the communities already living there. The comments 
include over flowing bins, rubbish in the streets and anti-social behaviour.

4 Salford City Council – Indices of Deprivation 2015
5 Salford Index of Multiple deprivation report 2015 Page 30



Table 5.2 Inspections by the Housing Standards Team 

Year
Total No. of 
Inspections 
carried out**

Category 1 
hazards 
identified only

Category 2 
hazards 
identified 
only

Category 1 
and 2 
hazards 
identified 
only

Where no 
hazards 
were 
identified

Environmental 
Protection Act 
1990? notices 
served

03/03/13 
to 
02/03/14

60 10 36 46 22 2

03/03/14 
to 
02/03/15

65 4 25 29 19 1

03/03/15 
to 
02/03/16

46 9 30 39 17 0

03/03/16 
to 
02/03/17

50 15 41 56 21 0

03/03/17 
to 
03/03/18

29 40 250 290 11 0

TOTAL 250 78 382 460 90 3
**inspection carried out per dwelling – a 5 bed HMO bedsit would be listed as 5 inspections
*source – Salford Flare records

As stated above, it is the council’s policy to always seek to work with landlords where possible and to 
make use of formal enforcement powers only as a last resort. This is shown in the policy and 
procedures which govern the work of the Housing Standards team and ensures that, except when 
dealing with emergencies, all landlords are informed of issues with their properties and invited to take 
part in consultation as to how they can best be resolved before any enforcement action is begun. 

However, where it is necessary to do so, the city council does make full use of the relevant powers 
available to it. 

Stability of the Housing Market 

Salford has a thriving housing market, but it is inaccessible to a high proportion of households6.
 
Salford’s average private asking rent level has increased from £587pcm in 2009 to £756 in 2018 
indicating an increase of 29% across the city with Langworthy being one of 3 ward areas showing 
highest increase in rent levels since 2009.7  Evidence shows the dramatic increase in the number of 
HMO’s with a 410% increase in 5 years and is continuing to grow.

The private rented sector is growing with an excessive number of investors looking for an investment 
in the proposed area and investor purchases are reducing the number of properties available to home 
seekers and driving prices up. This along with other factors as highlighted in this report make the area 
unstable with transient tenants and few new owner occupiers. 

6 Mosaic household income 2014-2017  
7 Vizzie Homes, and Zoopla Page 31



Whilst investment is welcomed, the Council strives for a stable housing market and an over saturation 
of one specific tenure that can? bring with it high turnover rates, anti-social behaviour, high levels of 
crime and an un-cohesive community will not provide this. 

The Selective Licensing schemes are long term interventions to support the improvement of the 
private rented sector and will not provide instant solutions but will complement and support our vision 
to drive up the quality of the private rented sector in the area. 

We want to improve quality across all tenures, by working with partners, landlords and other agencies 
to improve the existing stock in the private rented and owner-occupied sectors. It’s widely understood 
that poor quality or overcrowded housing can also impact on peoples’ health and their personal 
development, particularly for younger people and families.

Low Housing Demand - Conclusion

Low Housing Demand - Conclusion

The evidence base demonstrates that the proposed area has a high proportion of privately rented 
properties in sections 4.1 and 4.2. Furthermore, having considered the available evidence, the 
Council considers the proposed area to be suffering with low housing demand.  

The council has considered all of the factors in turn and when reviewing the evidence set out in this 
consultation document we find an area where: 

 Low housing demand is evident - whilst the proposed area has seen a rise in property prices 
they remain lower than the comparable area and the Salford average. The data suggests 
landlords are the main investor in property in the area moving towards converting properties to 
smaller type HMOs targeting single people most of who are in receipt of local housing 
allowance. There are also other factors that evidence that low housing demand is present in 
the proposed area - 

-  Overall turnover within the proposed area is still high, with occupiers moving 
approximately 4 times within the proposed area over a 5 year period, compared to the city 
average of 1.

- The number of HMOs (shared houses) has increased considerably and now represents a 
major housing market in the area. As previously cited, it would appear that first time 
buyers are not being attracted to live in this area.  There is investment, but this is from 
landlords who are moving towards conversions of traditional 2/3bed terraced property into 
smaller type HMOs. 

- There is a very low level of owner occupation at 30.3 % (the Salford average is over 67%) 
and the evidence suggests this is reducing every year.  However, the area has a higher 
than city average level of privately rented stock with evidence to suggest this is growing. 

- Short term empty property levels are double that of the comparable area and have a 
considerable impact on the area. 

- Hotspot areas of environmental crime with significantly high numbers of privately rented 
properties have been identified from our data sources as well reports made through local 
community groups. Evidence of this can be found in Annex 2. Since the previous scheme 
ended the problems reported appear to have increased.

 Anti-social behaviour has reduced over the life of the previous licensing scheme; however, our 
evidence demonstrates that it remains higher in the private rented sector than in other 
tenures.

 Salford’s crime data (the risk to persons & victimisation based on recorded violent crimes, 
burglaries, thefts & criminal damage data highlights that there is high crime deprivation within 
the proposed area. Analysis from Salford’s Crime and Disorder Team confirm this with general 
crime increasing over the 5 years in the both the wards of Langworthy and Weaste & Seedley.

 High levels of deprivation are present within the proposed area and Salford’s index of multiple 
deprivation report states that Langworthy is one of the three most deprived wards. In fact it 

Page 32



states that Langworthy remains the most deprived ward in Salford with no change 2004-2015, 
whilst Weaste & Seedley has declined and moved to ranked 8th from 9th.

 Poor housing conditions exist within the proposed area and it is evidenced within Salford’s 
index of multiple deprivation report with moderate pockets of housing deprivation (barriers to 
housing and services) in Langworthy. The hazards identified have started to increase in 2016 
and then significantly accelerated during the last year of the last scheme. This can be linked to 
the large rise in the number of small scale HMO’s not being up to standard, as supported by 
evidence when these properties have been inspected.  

The above findings taken together give a picture of an area where demand has improved over recent 
years, but which still faces significant challenges. 

Despite relatively low property prices there appears to be little appetite from owner occupiers to buy 
homes in the area resulting in properties continuing to move into private renting, either through the 
action of investor landlords or “accidental” landlords i.e. former owner-occupiers renting their 
properties out when, for whatever, reason they are unable to sell them at a price they find acceptable.

The relatively poor condition of privately rented properties, as detailed in this consultation document, 
indicates that they are subject to limited investment in maintenance or improvements. 

The correlation between privately rented properties and higher occurrence of anti-social behaviour 
and environmental crime would appear to indicate that households living in such properties either 
have a lower awareness of refuse collection arrangements and expectations of behaviour or feel such 
a low connection to the wider community that they choose not to comply. This presents significant 
challenges in terms of securing community cohesion and generating confidence in the local housing 
market.

In light of the above the council is satisfied that although conditions in the area improved during the 
life of the previous selective licensing schemes, the area remains affected by the blight of low housing 
demand when considered against the provisions of the legislation and relevant guidance.  

For the reasons set out in the consultation, the Council is satisfied that making a designation will 
contribute to the improvement of the social or economic conditions in the area, when combined with 
other measures taken in the area by the local authority or other persons together with the local 
authority, as detailed in this report and including but not limited to: 

 Making the area a priority for further regeneration activity and working to secure private 
investment in the area; 

 Protecting recent investment to ensure a well-managed private rented sector;
 Continuing with the “hot spot” approach to address long term empty properties, including 

securing further funding from the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) to offer financial 
assistance to property owners; 

 Continuing promotion of Landlord Accreditation in the area.   

The Council believes that the combined impact of all the interventions detailed within this report will 
be to contribute to increased confidence in the local housing market leading to investment by existing 
and prospective residents and property owners; support community cohesion in the area and improve 
the attractiveness of the area as a neighbourhood of choice for residents in all tenures. 

For the reasons set out in the consultation document, the Council considers that a designation would 
protect previous and current public and private investment in the area. 

A designation will allow the Council to support local landlords so that they can achieve a benchmark 
standard of property management. 

A designation would allow the Council to work in supporting and educating those landlords who are 
not providing good quality accommodation or managing their tenancies effectively and removing 
‘rogue landlords’ altogether. 

Page 33



Selective licensing will allow the Council to better work with tenants to educate them in relation to 
their responsibilities and the impact of their behaviour on the community and neighbours. It will also 
encourage tenants to recognise when properties are of a sub-standard condition and what options 
are available to them. 

Reduced tenant turnover will lead to sustainable communities, creating communities where tenants 
want to remain. Through attendance at resident meetings, local communities raise the fact that many 
tenants move into privately rented properties only to move out again very quickly. This high turnover 
of tenants does not assist in promoting community cohesion and building a sustainable community. 
Residents report that they are witnessing the increase of properties being bought and let to several 
individuals, which further supports our evidence highlighted in this report in the dramatic increase in 
HMO’s. This along with non-compliant standards, poor management and in effect high tenant 
turnover is one of the major causes of low level anti-social behaviour such as environmental crime as 
tenants do not have time to integrate with, and become part of, the local community. 

For the reasons set out in this consultation document the Council considers that the requirements of 
section 80 (3) of the Act are satisfied in relation to the proposed area. 

Objectives and outcomes of proposed designation

In addition to being satisfied that an area is suffering from low housing demand, the conditions in 
section 80 (3) of the Act require the Council to be satisfied that making a designation will, when 
combined with other measures taken in the area by the Council, or by other persons together with
the Council, contribute to the improvement of the social or economic conditions in the area. 

The Guidance states that the Council must assess and describe what outcomes will be delivered 
through the making of a scheme and taking other measures. Section 81 (4) of the Act requires a 
Council to consider that making the designation will significantly assist it in achieving its objectives 
(whether or not in conjunction with other measures). 

The Guidance states that the outcome of a scheme made under section 80 (3) of the Act should be a 
reduction in or elimination of the blight of low demand which has led to improvements of the social or 
economic conditions in the area, which are identifiable. 

This part of the consultation document contains information about the objectives and outcomes of the 
proposed designation and explains how the proposed designation will help the Council to address the 
problems associated with low demand in the proposed area (including the findings of a review of the 
achievements of the previous scheme). 

The requirement to be licensed 

If introduced, the proposed designation will require landlords to obtain a licence for their property, 
subject to certain exemptions. The table below shows the number of licences issued during the 
previous designation.  It is worth noting that the legislation does not permit licences to be transferred 
and therefore should a property be sold from one landlord to another, a new licensing application 
would need to be applied for.

Date No. of Selective Licences issued
03/03/13 to 02/03/14 609
03/03/14 to 02/03/15 146
03/03/15 to 02/03/16 136
03/03/16 to 02/03/17 75
03/03/17 to 03/03/18 53

*source – Salford Flare records

Page 34



Where a landlord is not eligible, landlord licences can be refused. An example of this would be if the 
landlord was not a ‘fit and proper’ person or they had poor management arrangements in place. 
During this scheme, no landlords were formally refused a licence.  However, the landlord licensing 
team work closely with proposed licence holders and where a refusal is likely landlords are informed 
and advised to delegate the responsibility of holding the licence to a more appropriate person. This 
secures the licensing of the property and ensures effective management arrangements are in place.

If a landlord fails to meet their duty to licence the property they may be subject to a prosecution in the 
Magistrates’ Court or alternatively issued with a Civil Penalty of up to £30,000.

Over the life of the scheme, 10 landlords have been successfully prosecuted for 11 separate offences 
of operating unlicensed properties within the designated area.  There is an unlimited fine for operating 
a property without a licence, in the above cases the fines have ranged from £704 and £5,971.

An unlicensed landlord, once prosecuted, could through a Rent Repayment Order be forced to repay 
up to 12 months of any Housing Benefit (now replaced by universal credit) they received whilst the 
property remained unlicensed.  

Following prosecution landlords remain responsible for licensing their properties should they still meet 
the licensing criteria. In the majority of cases where prosecution has been successful landlords have 
gone on to comply with the licensing requirements and ensure that both the management 
arrangements and the property are up to the required standard. 

The ability to deal effectively, appropriately and robustly with landlords who do not responsibly 
manage their properties would continue to play a key role in promoting confidence in the local area, 
encouraging inward investment and increasing the area’s desirability by directly addressing the 
concerns of residents and reputable landlords that the practices of bad landlords, if unchallenged, 
would act to damage the reputation of the area, reduce demand amongst potential tenants and lower 
property values. The positive impact of the previous scheme in this regard is shown by the ongoing 
growth of the private rented sector in the area.

In extreme cases, the council can apply a Management Order to a property and the landlords may 
risk losing control of their property for a period of up to five years, as the council can step in and take 
over the management. During the last designation the Landlord Licensing team were successful in 
applying for 4 Interim Management Orders served to 3 different landlords who failed to license 4 
properties even after they had been prosecuted. Salford City Council in effect became the landlord of 
these properties to ensure satisfactory management arrangements were in place for tenants, and 
community confidence that uncooperative landlords will not be tolerated.

Ensuring landlords and managers are “Fit and Proper” persons

The designation, if introduced will ensure that all privately rented properties in the area are managed 
by persons who have passed the ‘fit and proper’ test. In order to get a licence, landlords will have to 
show that they and their managing agents are “fit and proper” persons as well as providing 
information on how they manage their properties. When deciding whether a landlord/managing agent 
is “fit and proper” we will look at whether they have: 

a) Committed any serious criminal offences (fraud, violence, drugs or sexual offences); 
b) Discriminated illegally against anyone; 
c) Breached laws that relate to renting property.

Over the last five years the Landlord Licensing Team has worked closely with private landlords with a 
view to ensuring that they licence their property and improve management arrangements where 
necessary. 

Landlords are informed and advised to delegate the responsibility of holding the licence to a more 
appropriate person or provided with support to improve management arrangements where 

Page 35



appropriate. This secures the licensing of the property and ensures effective management 
arrangements are in place, which benefits both the tenants and neighbouring properties. 

This approach has also supported joint working with police and other agencies on a range of issues 
including proceeds of crime, illegal immigration, safeguarding of children and vulnerable adults, 
benefit fraud and Council Tax fraud. 

The ability to contribute effectively to these issues has had a positive effect on confidence in the local 
area, changing the perception of the impacts of the private rented sector amongst residents and 
supporting the promotion of community cohesion.

Improving safety standards

If a designation is made, the Council will have the power to require the landlord/agent to carry out the 
following actions in respect of each property that requires a licence in the area: 

a) Submit a current gas safety certificate every year; 
b) Install and maintain smoke alarms. 
c) Portable appliance testing (PAT) certification – if appliances are supplied with the property. 

The above certificates confirm the testing of appliances and installations by registered engineers 
ensuring that they are in a satisfactory condition. These testing and inspection requirements reduce 
the risk of harm to tenants occupying the property and those living in neighbouring properties.

Compliance work around gas and fire safety has shown that a significant number of landlords have 
breached their landlord licence conditions by failing to submit safety certificates to the Council as and 
when they are required to do so. During the life of the previous scheme, 696 landlords received final 
written warnings for failing to submit a gas safety certificate on or before the deadline date. 

Enforcement action has in the main resulted in positive outcomes and landlords have gone on to 
comply with their legal obligations. Other examples of poor management practices have also been 
identified through this compliance work whereby gas certificates have shown unsafe gas appliances 
being turned off. In some instances this has left the tenant with an inadequate source of heating 
within the property. 

The delay or failure in testing, places tenants at an increased risk of injury or harm from potentially 
unsafe appliances and installations. 

The assurance provided to neighbours and potential tenants regarding these fundamental safety 
issues has acted to promote private renting in the area as a positive housing choice, improve the 
perception of the sector and increase confidence in the local housing market.

Licence conditions 

Once a licence is issued, licence holders are legally bound by the licence conditions which ensure 
effective property management. 

The previous selective licensing scheme imposed conditions on private landlords which have resulted 
in an improvement in the management of the properties, again benefiting the tenants and the 
neighbouring community. 

Further compliance work has also been done around unsatisfactory landlord behaviour, including 
illegal evictions and rent issues. A total of 124 cases have been dealt with in the previous 
Langworthy, Weaste and Seedley scheme involving non-compliance with selective licence conditions. 

The Landlord Licensing team works with the Council’s environmental crime team in relation to 
enforcement work in this area. The proposed area continues to suffer from problems such as littering 

Page 36



and fly tipping. Licensed landlords were required under the licence conditions to educate their tenants 
on how to dispose of rubbish and provide tenants with bins and alley gate keys when they move in. 

The Landlord Licensing Team also has the power to revoke licences in circumstances where 
landlords have shown poor management standards or have breached the conditions of their licence. 

Ensuring compliance with the licence conditions is a key aspect in improving and maintaining the high 
standards expected within the private rented sector in the area.  Unfortunately, now that the scheme 
has ended and those conditions are no longer in place, the Council is receiving reports from local 
residents and Elected Members that management standards in the private rented sector appear to be 
declining, which is having a negative impact upon tenants and the local community. 

In considering the license conditions to be applied under the proposed designation the council has 
given consideration to: 

 the experience it has gained in operating previous selective licensing schemes, 
 issues and concerns raised by residents and landlords under the previous scheme, 
 changes in other relevant policies such as changes to the refuse collection system

aimed at promoting re-cycling and improving the appearance of the area.

Improving management arrangements

The proposed designation of selective licensing in the area will address the issues of poor property 
and tenancy management in privately rented accommodation, which can undermine even the most 
radical initiatives. Selective licensing will ensure that the increasing numbers of new landlords 
investing in the area are reputable. Investment in the area is welcomed, however, potential investors 
must acknowledge that property management is more than just an income and, as part of the 
Selective Licensing regime, support and advice will be provided to new landlords. 

As part the ‘fit and proper test’ referred to above, the Council will also check that the management 
arrangements in place for the property are satisfactory. Landlords who are successful in obtaining a 
licence will have to comply with the conditions of the licence. These conditions ensure that the 
property is managed effectively. Landlords, who do not comply with their licence conditions, may find 
themselves prosecuted and fined, if found guilty with the maximum fine being £5,000 or subject to a 
civil penalty. In extreme cases, the Council can apply a management order to a property and the 
landlords may risk losing control of their property for a period of up to five years, as the Council can 
step in and take over the management. 

Evidence shows that there has been a dramatic increase in the number of HMO’s in the area. Non- 
compliance with HMO standards will be enforced by the Council’s Standards Team utilising all 
available tools such as HHSRS notices and compliance by either issuing civil penalties under the 
Housing and Planning Act 2016 or prosecution.

A civil penalty can be issued as an alternative to prosecution for each separate breach of the Houses 
in Multiple Occupation management regulations. A civil penalty can only be imposed as an alternative 
to prosecution. The maximum penalty is £30,000. The amount of penalty is to be determined by the 
local housing authority in each case.

Civil penalties of up to £30,000 can be issued as an alternative to prosecution for certain specified 
offences; Extension of rent repayment orders to cover illegal eviction; breach of a banning order and 
certain other specified offences.

On 6 April 2018, new measures came into force, namely: 

 Banning orders for the most serious offenders; 
 A database of rogue landlords and property agents against whom a banning order has been 

made, which may also include persons convicted of a banning order offence or who have 
received two or more financial penalties.

Page 37



Selective Licensing will introduce a consistent level of property management services among all 
private landlords in the proposed area, thus assisting prospective private tenants in making a positive, 
confident choice about their next home in Salford within a sector often branded as the “tenure of last 
resort”. Reputable landlords could be assured that if a Selective Licensing scheme were in place, 
those landlords whose business practices do not meet the required minimum standards would be 
encouraged and supported to improve their management standards. Landlords who are not willing to 
work with the Council could face being refused a licence and ultimately having a Management Order 
imposed against the property. 

In conclusion, a significant amount of work has been carried out within the Langworthy, Weaste and 
Seedley area to ensure compliance with the licensing requirements of the previous scheme.

During the last scheme a total of 939 invitations were sent out to landlords requiring them to attend an 
interview for non-compliance with the licensing requirements. Writing to the landlords repeatedly 
failed to engage until threatened with PACE interview.  Towards the end of the scheme, the number 
of landlords failing to engage was increasing. With no scheme in place and with the number of 
privately rented properties increasing the council fails to maintain the investment made so far.

Graph 7.1 Number of interview invitations to landlords for non-compliance

128
147

233
197

234

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Number of invitations 
to interview

Number of interview invitations to Landlords for 
non-compliance 

*source – Salford Flare records

The increase in 2015 resulted from concentrated action against landlords who had persistently 
avoided the council’s attempts to engage since the introduction of the scheme and also the 
identification of non- complaint licensed landlords through the Council Rogue Landlord initiative.  This 
was funded by monies secured from the DCLG Rogue Landlord fund.

The Council is committed to working with landlords and will only use its enforcement powers as a tool 
of last resort. This is clearly evidenced in the data provided above, whereby some 939 landlords were 
invited in for formal interview, yet this only resulted in some 10 landlords being prosecuted, all of 
these cases resulted in conviction. In the majority of cases, the landlord licensing team were able to 
work with and support the landlords to comply with the licensing regulations without the need to 
progress to prosecution.

Improving Landlord Engagement 

Salford has operated a voluntary, citywide Landlord Accreditation scheme for over 15 years. The 
scheme is well respected and has formed the basis for similar schemes across the North West and 
beyond. Despite this and the fact that membership of the scheme is free of charge the majority of 
private landlords in the city have failed to take advantage of the benefits offered by Accreditation. In 
particular the take up rate for Accreditation in the proposed area is well below the average for Salford 
as a whole; only 129 landlords are accredited covering 179 properties. 

Private landlords who are identified through selective licensing, who may not otherwise engage with 
the council, i.e. through Landlord Accreditation, are provided with useful information such as changes 

Page 38



in legislation via e-newsletters, forums and direct mailing. Important information can be distributed 
quickly and effectively to landlords, and can provide an early warning system for landlords. 

The Council regularly holds a Landlord Forum which allows landlords to engage with officers. 
Landlords who attend this forum have regularly challenged the Council to deal with “rogue” landlords 
who are able to ‘undercut’ responsible landlords by offering poorly maintained and badly managed 
accommodation at reduced rental prices. Landlords who attend the forum are concerned that the 
practices of these ‘rogue’ landlords have an adverse impact upon the reputation of their profession as 
a whole. 

Selective licensing has allowed us to build strong working relationships with private landlords who 
would not necessarily have engaged with the Council unless licensing was in place. There are a 
number of local community groups and committees that operate in this area. For a long time, these 
groups have tried but failed to encourage private landlord participation. However, the landlord 
licensing team’s relationship with landlords has encouraged some landlords to have confidence to 
attend and become actively involved in these meetings.

Greater Manchester Police 

A Council’s partners play an important role in ensuring that a designation of selective licensing 
reaches its goal. This approach has resulted in positive outcomes the community. For example, 
where Greater Manchester Police (‘GMP’) have experienced a number of reports regarding the 
behaviour of tenants which has been regarded as anti-social or criminal in nature, the Landlord 
Licensing team has facilitated meetings between GMP and the landlords concerned to raise 
awareness of the incidents and to explore how they have impacted negatively upon the community. 
Following from this action, the Landlord Licensing team has been able to provide support to the 
landlords concerned to help them deal with problem tenants. 

Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue Service 

The Council also works regularly with Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue Service (‘GMFRS’). For 
example, if a fire has occurred at a rented property the Landlord Licensing Team is alerted; if the 
property is subject to licensing then the team will review the fire safety arrangements at the property 
to ensure they are compliant with the licensing conditions. The team will also liaise with and offer 
support to landlords in dealing with the aftermath of such events, particularly where the landlord may 
live some distance away.

UK Visas and Immigration

The Council has often worked with the UK Border Agency (now UK Visas and Immigration) UK 
Border Force and Immigration Enforcement in tackling issues around illegal immigration and 
exploitation of migrant workers in the proposed area. Examples of such issues include landlords 
raising issues relating to the immigration status of their tenants and residents complaining about 
licensed properties potentially being overcrowded. This has resulted in multi-agency visits to the 
properties and the complaints were fully investigated and appropriate actions undertaken. 

This action promotes confidence in the community, improves the perception of the sector and the 
area and contributes significantly to addressing issues which could otherwise act to undermine 
community cohesion. 

The detailed knowledge of the private rented sector in the area and engagement with landlords and 
residents that resulted from the previous scheme significantly enhanced the council’s ability to 
facilitate this work. The proposed designation will contribute significantly to sustaining and continuing 
successful joint working on these sensitive issues that has been beneficial to the area. 

Page 39



Multi – Agency Intelligence Hub

A multi-agency intelligence, problem solving and enforcement hub was established by the Council in 
January 2017.  This hub brings together, in a co-located team based at Pendleton Police Station the 
following partners:

 Police (through partnership teams)
 Trading Standards
 Licensing (including financial investigators)
 Environmental Health (food hygiene, dog wardens, events)
 Environmental Protection
 Anti-Social Behaviour
 Environmental Crime
 Private Sector Housing (housing standards, empty property and landlord licensing)
 Housing Advice ( Homelessness)

These partners have many tools and powers available to them to carry out intelligence gathering and 
problem solving tactics which can either prevent crime and disorder or prevent crime and disorder 
from escalating. The hub enables collaborative working with partners in respect of empty properties, 
homelessness and anti-social behaviour amongst other matters. 

The focus for the hub is on places and premises of concern that are causing crime and disorder in the 
city. It is recognised that as well as improvements to premises and places, individuals actions causing 
these premises and places to be of concern would also be targeted, resulting in improvements in the 
social and economic conditions of an area. 

The work of the hub consists of both proactive planned and reactive operations, with the Landlord 
Licensing team playing a key role in intelligence sharing around private landlords. Selective Licensing 
will help to ensure that landlords fulfil their statutory duties regarding tenancy management; the 
Landlord Licensing team can offer advice and support to landlords to ensure that they take 
appropriate and effective action where they receive a complaint about their tenants. It is important to 
recognise that the private rented sector provides housing to many of those excluded from other 
sectors of the market and these can be the most vulnerable sections of society, with issues such as 
alcohol or drug misuse and a history of anti-social behaviour affecting their ability to sustain a 
tenancy.

Salford City Council - Neighbourhood Management 

The Council has adopted a neighbourhood management approach to delivering services to 
customers, placing the local community at the heart of the decision making. The key to its success is 
ensuring agencies such as the Police, the Primary Care Trust, and Registered Social Landlords, City 
West Housing Trust and Salford City Council respond to local priorities in a co-ordinated manner. 
Within the area this approach has included an intensive neighbourhood management approach, 
working with residents and agencies to address issues around housing, crime and community safety 
and housing within a defined area. Engagement with private landlords via Selective Licensing will 
ensure landlords are informed of any issues in the area. 

Salford City Council - Social Services 

Where the Council’s Social Services team has housing related concerns about a service user who 
lives in rented accommodation in an area subject to licensing, they will liaise with the Landlord 
Licensing team, who will investigate the matter and take the appropriate action depending on the 
circumstances of the case. For example, a complaint may refer to a property not having a current gas 
safety certificate.

Selective licensing, the Housing Strategy and a co-ordinated approach

Page 40



The Council must ensure that any exercise of the power to designate an area of selective licensing is 
consistent with the Council’s overall Housing Strategy. 

Also, the Council must seek to adopt a co-ordinated approach in connection with dealing with 
homelessness, empty properties and anti-social behaviour, both –

a) as regards combining licensing with other courses of action available to them, and
b) as regards combining licensing with measures taken by other persons. 

Selective Licensing as part of the overall Housing Strategy and co-ordinated approach

Section 81 (2) of the Housing Act 2004 requires a council to ensure that any exercise of the power to 
make a selective licensing designation is consistent with its overall housing strategy. 

Housing Strategy 
The council’s Housing Strategy “Shaping Housing in Salford 2020” brings together all aspects of the 
council’s comprehensive housing role and has three strategic themes which describe the priorities for 
the council and it partners for responding to the housing challenges in Salford:   

The strategic themes are: 
 Drive housing growth on the city and promote opportunity

 Increase the number of new homes, including affordable homes
 Make the best use of existing housing

 Improve home sand transform places
 Achieve and maintain the Decent Homes Standard for all social housing
 Improve the quality of existing homes in the private sector
 Deliver energy efficiency an climate change priorities

 A partnership approach to enable people to live as independently as possible
 Ensure housing services meet local need and respond to changes in 

population makeup
 Support health and wellbeing through good quality homes and services

The strategy sets out key areas for development and action and by imposing licensing conditions we 
can ensure that there is continued progress towards achieving Salford’s vision for housing. The 
designation of a selective licensing scheme would contribute directly to this vision by imposing 
licensing conditions that improve management standards in the private rented sector, ultimately 
improving the quality of rented homes in the area. 

 Sustainable Community Strategy for 2009-2024 

The council’s Sustainable Community Strategy “Creating people to opportunities 2009-2024” sets out 
a clear vision and a number of challenging ambitions for Salford. One objective of this policy is 
“improving services and the quality of life” in Salford, which selective licensing contributes to directly 
by imposing licensing conditions that improve management standards in the private rented sector, 
improving housing conditions and quality of life for private rented tenants. 

A Co-ordinated Approach 

Section 81 (3) of the Housing Act 2004 requires a local authority to seek a coordinated approach in 
connection with dealing with homelessness, empty properties and anti-social behaviour both as 
regards combining selective licensing with other courses of action available to the council and 
combining licensing with measures taken by other persons. Selective licensing is not a tool that can 
be used in isolation. Councils must show how a designation will be part of the overall strategic 
borough wide approach and how it fits with existing policies on homelessness, empty homes, 
regeneration and anti-social behaviour associated with privately renting tenants. 

 Homelessness 
Page 41



A coordinated approach in connection with homelessness prevention is required, as prescribed under 
Section 81 of the Housing Act 2004. In that regard, selective licensing provides protection for tenants 
on assured shorthold tenancies in unlicensed properties, as a landlord is not allowed to serve a 
Section 21 notice (Notice to Quit) under the Housing Act 1988. 

During previous Selective Licensing designations, there has been no evidence to suggest that 
properties became vacant to avoid licensing. Similarly, there has been no evidence to suggest that 
landlords removed properties from the rental market during any of the licensing designations. In fact, 
year on year, the number of properties that required licensing increased in each designation. 

Through the council’s homelessness prevention work, housing options and advice is available as well 
as a Rental Bond Scheme. These activities can assist a household to remain in their current home, 
where appropriate or provide options to enable a planned and timely move and help sustain 
independent living. 

The Rental Bond Scheme is promoted to licensed landlords and aims to provide assistance to people 
who can't afford to pay cash deposits. By granting non-cash deposits in the form of a written bond 
guarantee, we can provide people looking for a home with access to private accommodation in 
Salford with landlords whose properties meet the standards of the Landlord Accreditation Scheme 
and the tenant can have reassurance that as a licensed property, it will be well managed. 

Landlords registered on this scheme agree to operate according to our good practice Code of 
Standards. Selective Licensing continues to contribute to the overall aims and objectives of the 
Salford’s Homelessness Strategy 2018-2023 with a key action to improve the private sector offer. 
This action includes

 Enhance Landlord Licensing Schemes
 Ensure licensed landlords comply with the licence conditions imposed on them
 Maintain and increase membership of the council’s Voluntary Landlord Accreditation scheme
 Effective implementation of Selective Licensing schemes, where appropriate
 Robust enforcement of current Selective Licensing schemes

 Empty properties and other private rented sector measures including Accreditation

The council recognises the value of a healthy and well managed private rented sector in meeting the 
housing needs of existing and future residents of Salford. 

The council therefore seeks to adopt a balanced and even handed approach to dealing with private 
landlords that offers practical support and advice to responsible landlords while making appropriate 
use of available statutory powers where that is necessary to protect the interests of tenants and other 
residents. 

Selective landlord licensing is one tool used to achieve this goal. The Landlord Licensing Team forms 
part of the council’s Regulatory Services which also includes teams dealing with: 

 Mandatory HMO Licensing 
 Landlord Accreditation 
 Empty Property Enforcement 
 Housing Standards – Housing Health and Safety Rating System (HHSRS) 
 Environmental Protection and Community Safety
 Trading Standards and Licensing

Delivering these functions from within one team is an example of best practice and demonstrates a 
holistic approach to providing services to the private rented sector, which is reflected in the excellent 
progress that has been made in raising standards in the city and supporting private landlords in 
operating their businesses. 

This team structure facilitates information sharing and co-ordination of work when dealing with 
properties where complex issues can be involved. This co-ordination reduces the chances of 
landlords becoming confused as to what is being asked of them and any duplication of effort.
 Page 42



Landlords are able to obtain technical advice regarding work required to their properties, in addition to 
training and support in managing tenancies and marketing of empty properties. 

All of these services continue to contribute to reversing the decline of the low demand areas in 
Salford. 

Equally, where problem properties are identified the full range of available interventions can be 
brought to bear quickly to provide a comprehensive response, increasing the probability of delivering 
a prompt and sustainable solution. 

Although Landlord Licensing does not directly address issues around the physical condition of 
properties, working as part of this approach allows the selective licensing team to call on additional 
resources, expertise and statutory powers where such issues are identified in properties as part of 
their work. 

Additionally, selective Licensing will raise awareness amongst private landlords about property 
condition (although enforcement will rely on other statutory powers such as the Housing Health and 
Safety Rating System). 

Salford has a long established Accreditation Scheme which has been running since 2001 and is well 
respected and has formed the basis for similar schemes across the North West and beyond.  The 
scheme continues to support selective Licensing in Salford and currently has in excess of 510 
landlord members who have signed up over 1270 properties citywide. However, despite membership 
of the scheme being free of charge, the majority of private landlords in the city have failed to take 
advantage of the benefits offered by Accreditation. In particular the take up rate for Accreditation in 
the proposed area is well below the average for Salford as a whole; only 160 landlords are accredited 
covering 230 properties.

The scheme has a good working relationship with managing agents providing advice, support and 
recognition for those promoting the accreditation scheme property standards and management 
arrangements. The scheme relies on landlords voluntarily engaging with the team, in order to sign up 
to the code of standards and make any improvements in their property standards or management 
arrangements. 

The council believes that selective licensing complements and works well with the work we undertake 
with landlords in relation to the Landlord Accreditation Scheme. With this in mind, as part of this 
consultation consideration will be given to offering a reduction to the licence fee for accredited 
landlords, which reflect the reduced time and work in licensing an accredited property. 

 Anti-Social Behaviour 

Tackling anti-social behaviour (ASB) is now synonymous with effective neighbourhood and tenancy 
management and the creation of sustainable communities. It is essential that private landlords take 
their responsibilities seriously and work with local agencies to ensure that communities do not suffer 
from persistent anti-social behaviour from private tenants. 

Effective information sharing and good standards of tenancy management are of key importance in 
supporting communities and preventing any spiral of decline.  An example of effective information 
sharing is where the council has utilised the use of the Public Space Protection Orders in other parts 
of the city; the information gathered via Selective Licensing has been valuable in engaging private 
landlords who operate in the area concerned to bring about social and economic improvements in the 
area.

The Salford Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership is made up of public and private agencies. 
Our Community Safety Unit, which includes the ASB Intervention and Action team, are tasked with 
tackling anti-social behaviour by responding to complaints perpetrated within the private rented 
sector. This involves working with agencies such as the police, witness outreach and Developing 
Initiatives Supporting Communities (DISC formerly Assfam) to develop case intervention strategies 
where problems are identified. 

Page 43



The following data shows complaints of anti-social behaviour received by council’s nuisance link 
team.  reports received in 2015/16 and 17 related solely to privately rented properties, and the 
majority of complaints in the 2 years before that also related to privately rented properties. Selective 
Licensing allows us to engage the landlord through licence conditions in being part of the solution in 
tackling anti-social behaviour.

Graph 1.7 Complaints of Anti-Social Behaviour 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

PRS
OO

Complaints of Anti-social behaviour

Source: Salford’s nuisance link team

To build upon the good work listed above, a multi-agency intelligence; problem solving and 
enforcement hub was established in 2017.  This hub brings together, in a co-located team based at 
Pendleton Police Station the following partners:

 Police (through partnership teams)
 Trading Standards
 Licensing (including financial investigators)
 Environmental Health (food hygiene, dog wardens, events)
 Environmental Protection
 Anti-Social Behaviour
 Environmental Crime
 Urban Renewal (housing standards, empty property and landlord licensing)
 Housing Advice (homelessness)

These partners have many tools and powers available to them to carry out intelligence gathering and 
problem solving tactics which can either prevent crime and disorder or prevent crime and disorder 
from escalating. The hub enables collaborative working with partners in respect of empty properties, 
homelessness and anti-social behaviour amongst other matters. 

The focus for the hub is on places and premises of concern that are causing crime, anti social 
behaviour and disorder in the city. It is recognised that as well as improvements to premises and 
places, individual’s actions causing these premises and places to be of concern would also be 
targeted, resulting in improvements in the social and economic conditions of an area. 

The work of the hub is both proactive planned and reactive operations, with the Landlord Licensing 
team playing a key role in intelligence sharing around private landlords. Selective licensing will help to 
ensure that landlords fulfil their statutory duties regarding tenancy management; the Landlord 
Licensing team can offer advice and support to landlords to ensure that they take appropriate and 
effective action where they receive a complaint about their tenants. It is important to recognise that 
the private rented sector provides housing to many of those excluded from other sectors of the market 

Page 44



and these can be the most vulnerable sections of society, with issues such as alcohol or drug misuse 
and a history of anti-social behaviour affecting their ability to sustain a tenancy. 

In Salford, we have established local partnership delivery groups, which are the vehicle for developing 
multi agency case intervention strategies where problems are identified, and can include actions for 
the police, the Youth Offending team, and the ASB Intervention and Action Team. Through selective 
licensing we will be able to engage the private landlords within this process and support them in 
taking appropriate action. Furthermore, through selective licensing, a communication route is 
available to offer the opportunity to share crime prevention measures.   

Selective licensing requires landlords to provide essential information about themselves and their 
business, including their “fit and proper” status, management arrangements and any relevant 
connected persons. It is important to note that we will continue to find ways to work with landlords to 
ensure that they can meet the entry requirements where possible. 

A landlord must comply with the conditions which are attached to a selective licence. Several of these 
conditions relate directly to the effective management by the landlord of incidences of 
anti-social behaviour. In terms of enforcing selective licensing conditions, our approach in this area 
will mirror that which has been used previously as we know it works. We are aware that there is still a 
lack of expertise amongst some private landlords and their managing agents in tenancy management 
and in particular in dealing effectively with anti-social behaviour. Therefore, the Landlord Licensing 
Team will provide landlords with support and ‘hands-on’ advice. This team will also provide individual 
support when the landlord is devising a strategy for responding to individual cases. 

This role does not replace the service that already exists to provide a statutory anti-social behaviour 
service to members of the public, but will provide a valuable training resource to landlords. However, 
landlords will not be able to pass the ownership of complaints on to this team. This must remain their 
responsibility. 

By having appropriate conditions on a licence, we can continue to work in tandem with landlords on 
the issue of anti-social behaviour. 

Regeneration

PFI refurbishment of council homes in the surrounding Pendleton area.

The investment into the council homes was completed in February 2017 marking the completion of 
the c£80m refurbishment programme with 1,269 homes (tenant and leasehold) receiving significant 
investment to bring them up to a modern standard.  New external cladding, insulation and double 
glazed windows transformed the areas skyline.  The works also included; new kitchen, bathrooms, 
rewiring, windows, improved thermal efficiency, new heating systems and an enhanced external 
environment.  Works are now being planned for an alternative cladding system for the tower blocks 
following the Grenfell Tower fire in 2017.

Linked development in the surrounding Pendleton area

Pendleton Phase 1 development commenced in June 2013 has seen the delivery of 293 new build 
completions including 110 new affordable homes for rent.  All new affordable homes have been built 
to Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes and private sale homes have an option to purchase 
Photo Voltaic Cells to reach this level.  

The new residential development has also brought forward complementary investment through:
 the creation of a new pocket park and children’s play area in South Clarendon;
 construction of a new road providing access to council homes allowing new parking, gardens 

and improved access;
 investment into the public realm including the creation of new home zones using high quality 

materials and landscaping
 dedicated disabled parking
 the creation of a new park in Amersham including children’s play facilities and running trackPage 45



 further public realm investment into the Broadwalk

Construction of an additional 52 new affordable family homes was completed in 2018 on the Kingsley, 
Kiwi and Nursery sites.  The affordable housing built has provided alternative accommodation for 
residents affected by clearance.

The Housing Act 2004 does not require the licensing of properties subject to tenancies granted by 
registered social landlords or councils which accounts for approximately 350 properties within the 
proposed area. There are approximately 760 properties which have been identified as privately rented 
and would require a licence if the proposals were introduced.   

Other courses of action and possible effects of designation

The Council must not make a selective licensing designation under section 80 of the Act unless – 

a) they have considered whether there are any other courses of action available to them (of 
whatever nature) that might provide an effective method of achieving the objective or 
objectives that the designation would be intended to achieve; and

b) they consider that making the designation will significantly assist them to achieve the objective 
or objectives (whether or not they take any other course of action as well). 

This means that the Council must consider whether there are any other courses of action available to 
it that would achieve the same objective as the proposed scheme without the need for the 
designation to be made. 

Councils should carefully consider any potential negative economic impact that licensing may have on 
their area – particularly the risk of increased costs to landlords who are fully compliant with their 
obligations. It is also important for local authorities to consider some of the possible effects of a 
making a designation and to include any risk assessment they may have carried out. 

Information about the Council’s consideration of other possible courses of action and the possible 
effects of the proposed designation can be found in Annex 5. Information about why the Council 
considers that making a designation will significantly assist it to achieve the objectives that the 
designation is intended to achieve can be found above

Other courses of action available to the Council 
Alternative courses of action 171. In accordance with section 81(4) of the Housing Act 2004, the 
council has considered whether there are any courses of action, other than selective licensing, that 
might achieve the same objectives in the proposed area. After careful consideration, the council has 
come to the conclusion that a further selective licensing designation is the most appropriate course of 
action in the circumstances, and that it will significantly assist it in achieving its objectives.

In accordance with the requirements of section 81 (4) of the Act, a Council must not make a selective 
licensing designation unless it has considered whether there are any other courses of action available 
to it that might provide an effective method of achieving the same objective or objectives as the 
proposed scheme without the need for a designation to be made. 

The Government guidance notes that ‘only where there is no practical and beneficial alternative to a 
designation should a scheme be made’. 

Accordingly, alternative approaches to the designation of selective licensing in the area have been 
fully considered by the Council, as set out below –

Alternative Solutions Weaknesses Strengths
Page 46



Landlord and Tenant Liaison 
Officer

Requires initiative from 
landlord/tenant
No enforcement powers
Limited caseload for Officer
Source of funding unclear

One to one advice/support 
to deal with specific issue

Education programme for 
private landlords

Requires landlord voluntary 
engagement
Source of funding unclear
No enforcement powers available

Improves standards where 
landlord is engaged with 
Authority and promotes 
confidence amongst 
tenants.
Documented evidence of 
landlords engagement 

Private sector leasing scheme Requires landlord voluntary 
engagement and does not improve 
management standards of landlords 
who chose not to join the scheme.
No enforcement powers available

Contributes to 
homelessness prevention 
as could be used for 
allocation to those in 
housing need.

Introduction of small HMO 
licence scheme

This would be a ‘pepper pot’ 
scheme across streets making it 
hard to manage. It would be seen to 
be unfair if other landlords on the 
same street who don’t require a 
licence. This would not resolve low 
demand issues identified

Improve standards within 
the small HMO’s.

Targeted use of Special Interim 
Management Orders and Empty 
Dwelling Management Orders

Resource intensive
Does not present a long term 
solution to poor management of 
private rented properties (up to 
maximum of five years – then 
returned to original owner).
Does not tackle poor management 
techniques.
Reactive
Intervention of last resort.
Only be used on specific properties 
where detailed evidence supports 
the action.

Removes landlord 
responsibilities and gives to 
responsible nominated 
agent.
Improves standards for 
tenants and local 
community.

The Council continues to operate a successful Landlord Accreditation scheme; however despite a 
targeted campaign to encourage landlords in this area to join the scheme, over the last five years take 
up has been very low with only 22.1% of the 760 properties part of the landlord accredited scheme. It 
is a valuable tool and we will endeavour to promote and encourage landlords to engage with the 
Council, however, as there is no mandatory requirement for landlords to comply, we do not consider 
that Landlord Accreditation, as a standalone measure, would provide an effective method of 
achieving the objectives the designation is intended to achieve.

The Council has been unable to identify any practical and beneficial alternative courses of action 
available to it that would achieve the same objective or objectives as the proposed scheme without 
the need for the designation to be made. In that regard, there are a number of barriers or limitations to 
the use of the alternative courses of action in isolation. To summarise: 

 Aside from the use of targeted management orders, the other measures require the voluntary 
engagement of landlords or tenants in order to achieve the required objectives. 

 There is the likelihood that some of the finance required would need to be collected from 
council tax. This seems unjust when many of the problems are caused by the lack of effective 
tenancy management. Selective licensing will continue to be entirely self financing, paid for by 
the licence applicants and not the community. 

 The use of Special Interim Management Orders and Empty Dwelling Management Orders on 
all problematic properties would be neither appropriate nor feasible, given the number of Page 47



properties. The Council must act in a proportionate manner and a heavy handed approach 
would undermine our efforts to work with landlords to improve standards. Selective Licensing 
provides an opportunity to continue to forge partnerships with otherwise anonymous private 
landlords and provide training and support, where the use of these orders does not. 

 None of these tools provide a long-term solution to the training of inexperienced landlords 
whose business would benefit, either because they are not fit, or because of their poor 
management arrangements. 

 Whilst selective licensing is only to be used in areas where authorisation is sought and given, 
many private landlords have properties across the entire city and indeed across local authority 
borders. Therefore, improvements attained in management standards will have a trickledown 
effect and will benefit tenants and communities across wider areas. 

 The introduction of Article 4 - planning permission is now required for the change of use of 
dwelling houses to small HMOs in certain areas one of which is Langworthy, Weaste and 
Seedley. Whilst this is welcomed, it will not improve the standards of the current private sector 
stock.

Each of the above courses of action can help to address the problems when combined with a 
selective licensing designation but the Council considers that none of the above would provide an 
effective method of achieving the objective that the designation would be intended to achieve. 

Having fully considered the matter the Council is of the view that there are no practical or beneficial 
alternative to a selective licensing designation.

Selective licensing is unique in providing a clear and robust legal framework within which to engage 
private landlords and deliver an integrated approach to tackle issues in a comprehensive manner to 
address the challenges within the proposed area and ensure any improvements are sustained. 

The Council views selective licensing as one tool to be used alongside each of the solutions listed 
above as part of an integrated, balanced programme of measures that is able to respond to the 
detailed circumstances of each case.

The Council believes that, on this basis, selective licensing, when taken together with other strategic 
initiatives and investment, will significantly assist the Council to achieve its objectives in the area. 

Possible effects of proposed designation  

Page 48



Local authorities should carefully consider any potential negative economic impact that licensing may 
have on their area – particularly the risk of increased costs to landlords who are fully compliant with 
their obligations. It is also important for local authorities to consider some of the possible effects of a 
making a designation and to include any risk assessment they may have carried out.

Possible effects of 
Designation

Likelihood Impact Total Controls

Landlords do not licence 
their properties

Unlikely Major Medium  Area subject to licensing 
previously

 Most landlords aware of 
process

 Full consultation to be 
undertaken

 Active campaign promoting 
landlord licensing

 Reduced fee for early 
applications

 Appropriate and effective use 
of enforcement where 
necessary

Displacement of 
unprofessional landlords 
to other areas

Unlikely Major Medium  No evidence of this in 
previous designation

 PRS actually increased in size 
in area during previous 
designation

 No evidence of landlords 
selling and moving out of area 
as a result of designation

 Work with/support/train 
landlords to 
promote/encourage 
satisfactory management 
arrangements

Increased cost to 
landlords

Almost 
certain

Minor Medium  Proposals for reduced fee for 
early applications

 Ability to pay a fee over 
proposed 2 year period

 Interest free instalment option 
proposed

 Proposed reduced fee for 
early application would equate 
with £21.58 a month over the 
proposed 2 year payment 
period

Licence fee passed to 
tenants rent

Moderate Minor Low  No evidence this has occurred 
in previous scheme

 Reduction in turnover
Reputable landlords 
ceased operating to 
avoid licensing regime

Unlikely Moderate Medium  No evidence this has occurred 
in previous scheme

Restricting the growth of 
the private rented sector

Unlikely Major Medium  No evidence this has occurred 
in previous scheme

 PRS actually increased in size 
in area during previous 
designation

Risk matrix used

Page 49



Likelihood Impacts
Insignificant Minor Moderate Major Catastrophic

Almost certain Medium Medium High High High
Likely Low Medium Medium High High
Moderate Low Low Medium High High
Unlikely Low Low Medium Medium High
Rare Low Low Low Medium Medium

                      

Page 50



P
age 51



                                                                                                                                                                                  

P
age 52



Annex 2 The results of the consultation

Contents Page

Results of the questionnaire 1
Letters from landlords 21
Letters from residents 41
Results of drop in event 50
Response from Citizens Advice  51
Response from the Residential Landlord Association 53

Page 53



Selective Licensing Consultation – Langworthy, Weaste and Seedley

Results

Question 1 asked about tenure and the breakdown of the results can be found below

About the proposed Selective Licensing area 

Q1 The value of properties in the proposed area is lower than those 
in the comparable area of Station Road.  

Agree Disagree

Residents & Tenants 78 21

Landlords & Managing Agents 9 14

Not stated 43

Q2 There is a high turnover rate amongst private tenants in the 
proposed area (i.e. tenants not staying in properties for long periods).

Agree Disagree

Residents & Tenants 104 11

Landlords & Managing Agents 6 20

Not stated 24

Q3 The high turnover rate amongst private tenants in the proposed 
area contributes to problems in the proposed area.

Agree Disagree

Residents & Tenants 101 12

Landlords & Managing Agents 6 17

Not stated 29

Q4 There is a high number of private rented properties in the 
proposed area.

Agree Disagree

Residents & Tenants 105 10

Landlords & Managing Agents 13 9

Not stated 28

Q5 The number of House in Multiple Occupation (HMO’s) is growing 
in the proposed area

Agree Disagree

Residents & Tenants 105 6

Landlords & Managing Agents 12 10

Not stated 32

Page 54



Q6 The number of HMO’s contributes to problems in the proposed 
area.

Agree Disagree

Residents & Tenants 100 11

Landlords & Managing Agents 10 12

Not stated 32

Q7 Short term empty properties are a problem in the proposed area. Agree Disagree

Residents & Tenants 75 34

Landlords & Managing Agents 7 15

Not stated 34

Q8 The general appearance of the proposed area is poor, e.g. fly 
tipping/dumping, litter.

Agree Disagree

Residents & Tenants 113 4

Landlords & Managing Agents 13 13

Not stated 22

Q9 Some streets should be removed from the proposed area Agree Disagree

Residents & Tenants 31 70

Landlords & Managing Agents 16 8

Not stated 40

Q9a If you agree with this statement, please give details of the street/s and your reasons 

Landlord Tenbury Ave & Coomassie St top end of market good quality homes. Alpha Street, Langton 
Street & Fram Street high % of owner occupiers

Landlord Goulden Street should be selective licence free because it does not suffer from the issues 
described earlier

Landlord All should be removed. The whole concept of landlord licensing doesn’t make any sense. I 
Disagree with the whole process.

Landlord Certainly Fram St, Middlebourne, Langton. No ASB issues / very high rental demand - do not 
blight areas by licensing them

Landlord Kennedy Road has NOT benefitted from selective licensing as the vast majority of problems 
stemmed from the numerous HMO's on the Street which were not covered by the scheme

Landlord Liverpool Street & surrounding areas
Landlord Many streets off Seedley park road parallel to Orrel St have already been the subject of 

licensing, the improvements such as gated alleyways, brickwork pointing and pavement 
repairs have already done the job

Landlord Langworthy Road should be removed
Landlord Cemetery Road in Weaste should not be in this proposal.  Small tidy road - house prices 

rising. Long term tenants and owner occupiers in situ.  Nice road to live on
Landlord Nona St, Edmund St, Nadine St, Western St, Alpha St, Fairbrook ST, Sydney St
Landlord Keswick Grove neither agree nor disagree.  We rent out our property private. lt and have 

Page 55



had the same tenant for 2yrs approx and would hope to continue to find long term tenants, 
we followed requirements for the last selective licence so continue on that basis with help 
from our agents Hills

Landlord Southbourne St where my property is located has never been problem that I am aware of 
and I have owned property for 9 yrs.  My tenants and letting agents have never reported any 
problems.  The street is also right on the edge of the stated area

Landlord My house is part of the new Pendleton One Development it is located on Athole Street.  
None of those houses should be included in this proposal

Landlord Tootal Road is where I own 3 properties.  The properties are all high standard.  I cannot 
afford the expense of landlord licence due to cost of refurb done this year

Landlord Highfield Road is mainly families not rented out 
Landlord Langworthy Road should be removed from the proposed area, due to the fact it is heading 

down the line of gentrification as a consequence of new developments along the road. The 
majority of the properties on this road are in good condition (not HMOs) and do not 
contribute to the challenges the proposed licensing aims to tackle. The surrounding smaller 
two bed terraces (i.e. Fram street etc.) are seen to be the source of the problems.

Resident The Pendleton One development around Amersham Park Road, Blodwell Street, St Ambrose 
Street,
Florin street, Langshaw street and Athole Street should not be included in your proposed 
area.
- A significant number of houses here are owner occupied.
- The average house prices in this development is not lower than your chosen comparable 
area.
- This area does not fit your criteria of low housing demand.

Resident some landlords rent to groups who then cause noise, leave litter & have no respect for 
others

Resident Streets should be kept separate 
Resident Unfortunately the tenanted properties are not always helpful to the community when it 

comes to litter/bin days especially when it comes to communal bins. I would like to see an 
end to communal bins in my street as it causes unrest. Please note some tenants are lovely

Resident tenants are not instructed to clean windows and keep property in a clean condition. Not 
given keys to alley gates so rubbish left in alley causing rodent infestation. My husband fills 
empty bins on bin days, puts them out brings them back in.

Resident Langworthy road should be removed. Its like bedsit land and house prices will be dropping 
rapidly. Car parking is hoorendous and rubbish being left outside these HMO's

Resident Langworthy, Nansen St, Harmsworth St, Kara St, Norway, Southern
Resident The properties on Weaste Lane is the biggest problem regarding litter and house waste 

dumping. Also Gore Crescent lived here for 61 years and now cars are being parked on grass 
verges and are a mess. Also council maintenance is very poor

Resident Keep house clean and tidy at all times, windows, brush outside back and front. Have keys to 
alleygates so they can put rubbish out

Resident Cedric St, Dodd St, Martin St, Liverpool St, Chandos Grove, Baltic St. Fly tipping /dumping 
rubbish general repair of houses

Resident It is very important to have a full spread of the various types of residence from home 
owners to social housing and HMO's & tenants across the whole area rather than only in 
designated areas. We are all equal and so everyone should be able to live where they want 
without licence

Resident It would be difficult to comment as the proposed streets are not mentioned in this 
documentation 

Resident ends of streets and alleyways are always filled with rubbish and large items that should go to 
the tip!

Resident I am personally not aware of any problems in tis area, except for rubbish and litter 
problems.  I am also not aware of any HMOs but feel that they could be a problem

Resident Fram Street, black bags full of rubbish left all over the street near school area
Resident No
Resident This street was supposed to be for family but is the sign of time
Resident too many short term tenants and untidy street and area in general/street & entriesPage 56



Resident no more letting in this area
Resident At the back of Wellington Terrace they are constantly tipping rubbish. This has been 

removed a number of times as they are building new homes at the back of Wellington 
Terrace

Resident It’s noticeable that HMO's are growing in the Cardigan St, Pembroke, Haven St & Milford St 
area, due to the size of some of the houses. I have noticed more drug dealing, grafitti & litter

Resident If the growing number of HMO's are not regulated and reduced!! These areas are going to 
stay poor in appearance and value. Landlords should be accountable for the behaviour of 
there tenants, this includes most of the streets in LWS

Resident I agree because a lot of private landlords once they get their tenants in and get their money 
don’t keep their property clean & tidy. Also private landlord don’t care how many are in the 
house as long as they get their money

Resident some houses in this area have been converted into share 4 people in them - houses are too 
small for individual lets

Resident You are more aware of these streets than I am. All I know is that Seedley with all the filfth is 
definitely a lot higher than what is was

Resident I have lived in Orrel Street for over 30 years. The increase in rented accommodation appears 
to contribute to issues in the area. I have made numerous reports on dirty streets & entries 
& fly-tipping & rubbish dumping. Noise is also becoming an issue

Resident A few streets adjacent to Cardigan St are neglected usually rented out to short term tenants. 
Our own back alley was a dumping ground by some Rostherne short stay tenants. We have 
now claimed it back and cleaned it up.

Resident I don’t agree their should be a licence
Resident Chandos Grove & Kennedy Road
Resident The backs of the houses on Weaste Rd are disgusting. The fronts & backs of houses on 

Weaste Lane are disgusting. The landlords should be held responsible for the tenants to be 
made to use the correct dustbins

Resident no more high rise apartments. work on restoring existing properties
Resident short term students in HMO dumping rubbish & litter. Don’t respect the area or its 

residents. Problems with parking, people parking & entering play streets and going to work 
on the Quays or the tram

Resident Langworthy Road is a commercial Street tenants do not cause the problems here the social 
club does

Resident Edmund Street - no issues here. Langworthy Road - commercial street with pubs/restaurants 
so how can tenants be causing the problems

Resident Too many temporary residents moving in which means we are losing neighbours
Resident not necessary to licence

Q10 Some streets should be included in the proposed area Agree Disagree

Residents & Tenants 23 43

Landlords & Managing Agents 7 12

Not stated 80

Q10b If you agree with this statement, please give details of the street/s and your reasons 

Landlord those streets with high % of students or HMO's
Landlord Barff Road should be included to try and combat the continued piles of rubbish dumped by 

tenants there in to the alleyway behind. The council need to be tougher on those landlords 
who allow it to continue

Landlord This selective scheme in previous years included the entire area that a blanket scheme not 
selective

Landlord Everywhere should be included because all areas can improve with better standards.  HMO 
Page 57



properties should not be mixed with family housing
Landlord I am sure there will be streets where more problems are likely as in any location but as I am 

not local I cannot name any in this particular area
Landlord The old terraced houses which have been standing for years eg spring gardens/duchy street 

need to be included not brand new developments or regeneration programmes - you have 
excluded urban splash so why include new build?

Resident All streets with poorly managed / abandoned properties should be included in the proposal.
Resident entire area enclosed by Wall St, Langworthy Rd, Alpha St, Highfield Rd. Due to Anti social 

behaviour
Resident maybe some streets should all be private rented & segregated (ie for students)
Resident Scanlon Street, off Athole Street, should be included. It is is the same area as

included streets and contributes to the problems around Clarendon Park.
Resident It will help SCC with who lives in the area and houses of HMO's and the over crowding in 

some of the HMO's. Gives all parties better understanding
Resident all streets in the Seedley & Langworthy area should be included as previously
Resident all streets
Resident Gore Crescent, Weaste Lane
Resident All streets in the area
Resident All streets should be included
Resident Kingsford St, Emerson St & Weaste Lane
Resident You have not sent a map of the proposed area so cannot answer question 10
Resident don’t know
Resident Langworthy, Nansen St, Harmsworth St, Kara St, Norway, Southern
Resident Chandos Grove. Letter everywhere, especially at the shopping area.
Resident All the streets
Resident Can you just confirm that you are not proposing to include the Chimney Pots Park Estate 

within the proposed selective licensing scheme, namely Fir, Laburnum, Ash, Reservoir, and 
Alder Street?
And the reasons for this exclusion, not that I think they should be included.
Can you just confirm that you are not proposing to include the Chimney Pots Park Estate 
within the proposed selective licensing scheme, namely Fir, Laburnum, Ash, Reservoir, and 
Alder Street?
And the reasons for this exclusion, not that I think they should be included.

Resident Our area is fine for rentals and HMO's we like the variations in people and the vibrancy new 
people can bring to the area. The area is / has been a bit run down over the years and now 
people and life coming in help to reenergise the area.

Resident the wider the are subject to scrutiny the better
Resident wellington terrace
Resident It would be difficult to comment as the proposed streets are not mentioned in this 

documentation 
Resident Areas around Goulden Street ad surrounding streets
Resident one for all and all for one
Resident no more letting in this area
Resident Nansen Street.  The Council area ware of the problem of fly tipping by the residents on 

nansen street.  But turn a blind eye.  Could their problem be they have no bins or key to 
alleygate. Does anyone from the council care. Rat problems have increased because of the 
rubbish strewn everywhere

Resident I think any of the areas with HMO's should be regulated most areas with these propertys in 
Salford are a disgrace & contribute to lower house prices, the filfth they generate is a health 
hazard.

Resident Barff Road, Kennedy & Tootal Drive. Fly tipping litter in streets
Resident when I came here over 50 years ago and is declining with the people that SALIX is allowing in 

rented properties
Resident I do not have enough knowledge of other areas to contribute
Resident Ashley St short term leases can be a problem. The fly tipping along White Street (separate 

matter) needs resolving (cameras maybe) it’s a blind spot
Resident I don’t agree

Page 58



Resident I think all streets should be included so its fair poorer and richer areas
Resident The streets that have owner occupiers in most of the area which are its garden semi are 

disappointed that odd houses in and around the area are being rented out and are being 
neglected letting the area down. Two which are on my row 35 & 39 have been let to quite a 
few times in the last 2 years. The grass verges now spoilt by parking cars on them

Resident Salford council are losing control like they did at Greenland Street area other side of 
Liverpool St

Resident All streets should be included
Resident cant check map at the moment but please ensure Weaste Lane / Road all incorporated to 

end as well as liverpool Street to St Lukes Church area, Lord Avenue / Tootal Drive etc as 
well

Resident Tenbury Close, if we are to have private landlords like next to our house , the landlords need 
to be accountable.  They had workman banging at 1am and when asked to stop they did not 
they had sofa in garden for 2 years and reeds rains seen to not vet the landlords

Resident all streets within 3 areas should be included

Q11 What problems if any, do badly managed private rented properties cause in the 
proposed area?
Landlord They cause issues with tenants. Tenants might experience increased levels of anxiety
Landlord Same as all other areas including Salford Quays
Landlord Anti-social behaviour, trespassing, vandalism, fly-tipping. Poor condition and maintenance 

of properties endangering both resident tenants and neighbouring properties and their 
occupants

Landlord Littering, dropped their overflow littering into neighbours bins
Landlord HMO tenants do not have any loyalty to the community in the local area, take up parking 

spaces and strain resources in the local area. Do not mix with neighbours
Landlord poor general conditions & fear by tenants of their landlords
Landlord badly managed properties are easily identified without taxing everyone in any designated 

area
Landlord nuisance neighbours
Landlord Low standards encourage people to be lax with everyday rubbish
Landlord I cannot see any as landlord tend to renovate old properties and look after them wish is an 

asset
Managing 
Agent

None- refuse collection is an issue however this is usually due to people stealing bins 
whose parents own houses in the area

Landlord Not aware, other than issues shown in the consultation document
Landlord ASB by small minority but that should be written into the terms of the tenancy
Landlord standard of tenant causes the problem
Landlord I didn’t experience any problems with this
Landlord Angry disruptive tenants. However, speaking from personal experience, being a 

professional and reliable landlord following best practice does not prevent this on every 
occasion.

Resident High tenanted house % and also high turnover creates problems. Tenants given info on bin 
days or
recycling, alley gate keys not given, sometimes no black bins given. Landlords here in 
general don't seem to care about the area, only about getting money from tenants - very 
little supervision by landlords of their properties/tenants. Result is lack of community, fly 
tipping is endemic, council spends huge sums clearing fly tipping, bad for mental well being 
as we feel we're all living in filth.

Resident High risk of anti-social behaviours, unsightly rubbish / behaviours, high crime rates
Poor property price growth, attracting less demand by young professionals to settle down 
in the area.

Resident Area has young criminal gang that start fires, vandalise and verbally abuse if not attack 
local vulnerable adults. These children are known to police but parents do nothing

Resident House on Seedley Terrace was privately rented & was occupied by 3 young males who 
played music loud until early hours of the morning. They have now gone somewhere else 
thankfully Page 59



Resident Too many cars for allocated spaces. Bins not taken in, front gardens not maintained
Resident Since our neighbouring houses in a terraced row became HMOs with transient tenants, we 

have had more problems with rubbish in the alley, stolen bins, and rodent pests. There is 
frequent 'work' going on and we don't know our neighbours anymore.

Resident landlords not providing tenants with key for alleygates. Waste bins not being out on the 
correct day. Rubbish being dumped at backdoors

Resident don’t know
Resident Fly tipping, overflowing bins with wrong refuse in. No pride in housing, gardens full 

rubbish. Landlords emptying properties when residents leave in alleyways when 
renovating. Bricks dumped in wheelie bins. Parking is also a problem with HMO houses 4 
cars +

Resident late night parties going out onto the street drinking, using street as a toilet, smoking drugs 
in the street, noise, swearing. And we have 4 HMO's in Church Ave and 2 HMO's in Derby 
Ave, don’t know who is living in these homes there is so many people. 

Resident we have had 2 sets of drug addicts facing our house, strange people visiting them all hours 
and doing drugs at the end of the street. Police and ambulance there for second set of 
people on number of occasions. The door has been kicked in and shouting from family 
members. Young family in on first people, partys every week police came several times 
before all families evicted.

Resident The short term tenants have a total disregard for keeping standards of cleanliness in the 
area.

Resident rubbish - putting bins out days before collection and extra bags in HMO's overcrowding & 
subletting

Resident too many people living in the house (33 Goulden Street) This has been turned into a 4 flat 
property making almost £2000 a month. 36 Goulden Street has people smoking weed on a 
daily basis

Resident too many people in 1 house (33 Goulden Street) cannabis being smoked on a regular basis 
(36 Goulden Street)

Resident Parking problems - 4 bed house share could mean up to 4 cars taking up parking space in 
streets. Lack of community responsibility / cohesion. Refuse / bins

Resident Rubbish outside houses. Bins left out all the time. Landlords need to be more accountable 
for their tenants. Used to be a lovely area but renting has certainly brought area down

Resident fly tipping & anti social behaviour. Parking problems
Resident not reycling correctly, residents of their properties should be informed on how to recycle, 

instead of dumping it in the streets
Resident not held accountable for bad tenants
Resident rented properties should be informed where to buy alley gate keys and the cost and have 

proof they live in the property
Resident poor upkeep of properties make area undesirable for house buyers. Lots of properties 

being done up and skips everywhere but things are being dumped on pavements not in 
skips.

Resident fly tipping, no respect for area, brings in many people with no real infrastructure ie GP's or 
dentist to cope with extra people

Resident recycling, fly tipping, messy gardens
Resident Not staying long don’t care about what they leave behind don’t care what problems they 

make
Resident filthy backs with rubbish not being dealt with. No care being taken with the exterior of the 

houses. Car parking should be sorted with one space per house. House prices dropping
Resident lower value of other homes
Resident Fly tipping, parking and mainly safety issues. These houses don’t seem to have consent for 

HMO and could be a fire rsisk. Also no one consulted us they just came out of the blue
Resident when vacated rubbish including matresess are left on the street. Surely the landlord is 

responsible for this 
Resident Fly tipping, people not taking pride in their area - cluttering back entrys with rubbish
Resident fly tipping in the front gardens of Weaste Lane causing rats. Parking issues - HMO's six 

bedrooms being let out to students = 6 cars per house on an already busy road
Resident mainly Weasts Lane rubbbish all over the place 

Page 60



Resident all properties should be informed where to buy alleygate keys and have proof they live in 
the property

Resident fly tipping between seedley park road and grange street major problem
Resident In the past the landlord left the property empty for a long time & caused damp in our 

house from next doors
Resident high levels of fly tipping, value of property reducing
Resident Fly tipping /dumping rubbish general repair of houses
Resident none that we can see
Resident anti social behaviour. Now residents have a stand in the area and can leave easily, leaving a 

large number of empty worthless houses
Resident Fly tipping/dumping. Dog waste on street. Soiled nappies, food waste and litter 

everywhere its terrible
Resident fewer than badly manage social housing
Resident The overall condition of rented properties are poor ie fence post need replacing, fly tipping 

is a problem in the area
Resident Noise, accumulation of rubbish, drug use, too many vehicles
Resident anti social behaviour and rubbish 
Resident see attached sheet 
Resident rubbish anti-social behaviour
Resident rubbish, parking  - see sheet 
Resident Litter and rubbish bin problems.  I think tenants should be responsible for their own 

behaviour.  Landlords cannot control everything all the time.  Tenants should be fined.
Resident Rubbish left all over all ways and side street
Resident fly tipping, overcrowding properties, parking blankets put up in front of windows instead of 

curtains bring area down
Resident eyesore to the street
Resident rubbish noise
Resident always damp
Resident People moving out and leaving furniture they don’t want dumped in entrys.  Garden made 

for people living in goulden and langton st is full of furniture people dump when moving 
out

Resident Badly kept property - dirty/scruffy - landlords don’t seem to bother as long as they are 
getting rent - huge problem. No vetting for tenants - people bringing antisocial behaviour 
problems into the area - huge problem

Resident As described in 10b walk down Greenland Street. Rubbish everywhere near local school, 
people travelling to media city pass by and must think we all live in pig stys

Resident some in desperate state of repair
Resident transient population who are not invested in the area. houses in a poor state of repair
Resident noise complaints (student parties)
Resident from my observations they don’t maitain the property outside, weeds, rubbish its all left a 

mess and contributes to the poor appearance of most of these areas. They don’t seem to 
be interested in recycling putting houshold rubbish in the recycling bins etc.

Resident the problems are the owners of properties they take the money for the rental of the homes 
but not the responsibilities for the properties especially when their tenants don’t speak 
english or understand

Resident Fly tiping, noise, more vehicles in nearby streets, the area is looking more rundown
Resident look after gardens also work that should be done like fencing etc also make sure that the 

people who live in property are the correct number for the property
Resident old tenants furniture & belongings thrown into alley ways. HMO not taking parking into 

consideration when giving permission
Resident cause anti-social behaviour. Risk of mugging goes up. Rents go up. No protection  for 

tenants
Resident house appearance ie cleanliness/window display/following rubbish disposal rulings/ 

disrespecting of local area
Resident Litter, poorly maintained properties giving the whole community a bad reputation. Tenants 

with many social problems. Health hazards. Not fit for purpose homes. Tenants poorly 
treated by landlords

Page 61



Resident see attached R66 comments
Resident I lived in the homeswap area for langworthy & private rents brought the area down. I was 

home owner and lived through hell with these tenants - would be sad to see it happening 
again

Resident the daily & private lives of 4 & 5 random peoples all being lived out in small terraced 
houses, divided into small cramped rooms can and does make life unbearable for residents 
and families living adjacent, especially  older long term residents who find that 4 whole 
rooms in their properties are now unliviable due to so many households in one place

Resident rubbish is left out of bins & contributes to a health & safety hazard as well as an eye sore. It 
attracts rats!! New houses built in the area will be ahrd to sell

Resident lack of up keep on properties. Dirty areas of land waste left in yards. People too lazy to take 
bins out of entry. My husband has to do to help with the up keep where he can.

Resident unsightly invite dumping rubbish attracting vermin
Resident I don’t believe the p[roblem is within CRP, I think it’s the area around
Resident rubbish, unfriendly neighbours, crime, flytipping bad parking driving
Resident fly tipping. Rubbish in all areas. ASB acr parking & traffic
Resident Fly tipping. ASB behaviour. General run down of the area. reduction in value of property
Resident Just go down Weaste Lane & Weaste Rd & Tootal Rd near the post office & chemist and 

see the mess
Resident decline in properties appearance. Problem tenants also rubbish
Resident many - but this would not be limited to just the area. Discussed - but be a problem 

countrywide (surely!?)
Resident no issues with private rented properties
Resident removal of rubbish & putting the correct items in the right recycling bins. & bins left out on 

the pavements for weeks/months. Landlords should check tenants on a regular basis & 
they don’t as long as they have the rent on time

Resident properties are not necessarily badly managed, as they appear to generate income for a vast 
number of private landlords. The problem lies in the fact that overloaded dustbins & full 
waste sacks are a constant present. Council signs stating 'do not dump rubbish on our 
streets' are ignored and serve no purpose

Resident nobody wants 7 people living next door to them. Noise, fly-tipping, parking
Resident none
Resident Back entries are a disgrace. Fly Tipping, all kinds of rubbish being dumped. Some properties  

need attention by landlords (houses in disrepair). Anti-social behaviour, drinking and loud 
music all night until morning

Resident properties  are not generally well maintained and look scruffy
Resident you can see how the area is going down, they don’t seem to bother because its not there 

own property, the appearance and the area of some of the propertys are letting the street 
down.

Resident Parking problems, litter & Noise
Resident There is a real issue with alley keys and bins with some people not seeming to have bins 

placing rubbish in bags, fly tipping. If properties are badly managed there can be issued of 
poor repair of properties. Anti-social behaviour. Houses of multiple occupancy have 
additional cars creating parking problems. Houses of multiple occupancy reduce the 
number of family’s in the area people don’t know there neighbours people in these houses 
don’t seem to Connect  with the community.

Resident Rubbish in street, umped in gated alleys. Over grown alley /gardens. Poor monitoring of 
tenants & tenancies (&management of) too many vehicles for the amount of road space in 
the area. Please note the poor HMO's are causing this too

Resident Next to us garden not cut for 3 years, poor maintenance, rubbish in garden extra litter
Resident Household waste and fly tipping noise and asb parking problems  multiple car from HMOS
Resident anti-social behaviour, fly tipping and a disrespect for neighbourhoods

Q12 Do you feel there are any other practical and beneficial courses of action available to 
the Council that would achieve the objective of the scheme, without the need for the 
designation to be made? Page 62



Landlord In some areas this be the 3rd time SL has been done, as shown some streets should be left 
out. You could pull out certain streets to have some kind of licence ie those with students 
HMO's ASB etc

Landlord Introduce tighter regulation and increase the effort in trying to enforce this
Landlord our view is that a much better system would be to have a proper regime of inspection and 

fines for landlords who do not comply with the law instead of the sledgehammer approach 
of penalising every landlord

Landlord Nothing is achieved as we as landlords have no support and we feel we are spending too 
much time ***** council rather than **** ***** (cant read the writing)

Landlord only licence HMO's where there are some poor standards
Landlord landlord access to the mulit-agency HUB. Increased use of management orders and civil 

penalties to act as a deterrent. Membership of a recognised body such as RLA for up-too-
date education. There needs to be a proper clampdown on the rapidly increasing numbers 
of small HMO's in the area. Since Selective Licensing was introduced, many unscrupulous 
landlords have converted properties and taken this route due to it being exempt from the 
scheme, and consequently the problems have rapidly escalated. Local Authorities need to 
properly enforce the wide range of powers they already have to tackle sub-standard 
housing & criminal behaviour

Landlord encourage landlords apply the licence by discount on it IE 10% off if pay it with no 
installment

Landlord enforce existing powers. Find ways to discourage HMO's. HMO's should be the main target. 
Most properties XXXX (cant read) in Salford as HMO's of varying quality & amenities

Landlord The council should know what each house is being used as many rental properties in poor 
areas are managed by unscrupulous landlords & managing agents. Shut these down & 
improve the area

Landlord Think council owned / housing association tenants have a far greater detrimental affect 
than PR accomi. Council needs to focus on managing these tenants

Landlord Many years ago new tenants were visited in their properties to ensure they were 
complying with the terms of their tenancies and where necessary heir benefit claims

Landlord Asking landlord for their advice
Landlord All tenants should be made responsible for their care and upkeep of the property.  Larger 

deposits for those who fail to do so.
Landlord selective licensing only the bigger properties and to rougher areas
Managing 
Agent Article 4
Landlord If one of the main issues is rubbish in alleys this was made much worse when bin 

collections reduced, we lived at the property at the time and noticed other streets having 
issues although not keswick grove so better/more frequent bin collection may help

Landlord The Council already has pwer to deal with rogue landlords and should use these existing 
powers appropriately without penalising the good landlords (like myself) who look after 
their tenants properly.

Landlord Better use of schemes such as neighbourhood watch,  CCTv near the parks where some 
people congregate

Landlord Ask tenants about the standard of their individual properties and if they are in poor 
condition.  Enforce them to comply with good standards and up to date gas cert, elec cert, 
etc

Landlord Request all Landlords and Letting Agents are accredited under a scheme that Salford 
Council supports. This would put ownership and responsibility on the landlords and reduce 
paperwork, whilst creating a culture of best practice. 
Council / 3rd parties (Urban Vision) could carry out spot checks / audits at any time and 
issue penalties of the appropriate level. In comparison to a similar process, individuals take 
and pass a vehicle driving test and then are responsible for ensuring they comply with the 
rules (car tax, speeding, insurance, etc.) and are penalised only when not following 
procedure. They are not required to prove their competence any further.

Resident   Licensing is a good way to get some cash in for dealing with issues. So overall I think we’re 
clear that a licensing scheme would be beneficial to try to bring some control to the house-
grabbing that’s going on at the moment by landlords. In general there is a feeling here 
locally that landlords care little about the community or even the physical house in 

Page 63



question (judging by the state of some of them) – I think that many probably view it as just 
a way of getting more money from an investment. At scale, this will simply destroy a 
community, which is probably what is starting to happen now. The resulting money from 
rent is not benefitting this community – it just goes to the pockets of the rich who can 
afford to buy second and third properties. So for me, one point of having the landlord 
licensing is that it would be a way to claw back some of this money that is being extracted – 
then that money could be ring-fenced by the Council to be spent on funding the landlord 
licensing team AND the work of the environment team within the licence area, as in to help 
pay for cleaning up the mess that comes with high levels of tenants. Someone has to pay 
for it, and with the Council being cash-strapped we have to be clever about finding sources 
of funds to help with it all. And the ones with the funds are the landlords….

Resident Enforcement. So one concern I do have though, is that even if the scheme restarts and 
there are licence conditions, how are these enforced? I think perhaps one thing to add 
could be mandatory and regular checks on all landlorded houses – so this needs to be 
financed of course, but otherwise how to check that conditions are being met apart from a 
report from someone followed by investigation followed by someone having reasonable 
doubt to force their way in… but such a long process, and in the meantime many properties 
that weren’t reported are as bad

Resident Also if landlords who register are given incentives to buy, what are the advantages to the 
home owner residents? 
The demographics have change in Weaste and seedley where nobody knows their 
neighbours and the people living in the rented houses have little or no interest in the 
street, community,or upkeep of the house they rent or share because they are not staying. 
How about ? Giving families or first time buyers help to move into the streets again and get 
some community feeling back ? Or make landlords pay more for moving into a ( what was ) 
a residential area ?Not giving them discounted incentives?
Just a few thoughts before I fill in my form , plus what about older residents who do not 
have emails and internet ? Why no addressed envelope for their form ?

Resident No. I have read the Council consultation documents and consulted Acorn and believe 
Selective Licensing to be the best option on the table at present.

Resident yes
Resident No because if they didn’t have to look after their properties whilst getting rents because 

they don’t live in the area they don’t care what people they put in or the mess that they 
make

Resident maybe give bad landlords or letting agencies that keep letting property to bad tenants fines 
or if police are called to a number of times they have to be evicted from the property

Resident turning homes into hotels does not work
Resident Put reminders of expectations on any council letters regards the standards of streets and 

front of house cleanliness. Also the use of communal spaces ie gardens and its 
maintenance 

Resident We definitely need to reinstate the landlord licences as it worked perfectly well. I would 
like to see landlords paying more for their licence.

Resident make by-laws restricting the number of HMO's. Enforce planning restrictions. Meetings 
with local residents to air grievances and suggest solutions

Resident fines for bins left out after collection. Penalty points to landlord if fines incurred. Fines for 
excessive litter within rented property front area. Penalty points landlords. 10 points & 
licence revoked

Resident bin collections should be revised, more often on black bins. Alternate weeks on blue & 
brown, fortnightly on pink bins

Resident no - this is the right course of action to control landlords and make them more responsible
Resident fines for landlords who don’t provide bins & alley gate keys where appropriate
Resident fines for non recycling, fine landlords for messy tenants
Resident just don’t allow HMO's these are good family homes and should be used for families. Its 

disgusting having to live with the mess
Resident We need the scheme with regular inspections, as of the high turnover of different people 

and how does the landlord and council know who is living there at any one time. The 
tenants could be subletting.

Resident If there is rubbish, warn people, and tell them not to tip
Page 64



Resident better management of these houses to ensure they are run correctly as most are dirty and 
scruffy. Parking permits to stop landlords advertising rooms with parking when there is no 
parking

Resident tarmac Gore Crescent and do away with grass verges which are poorly maintained and very 
unsightly

Resident no
Resident maybe once a month a skip so people could get rid of rubbish
Resident be sure to respond to residence if/when they complain about a particular property would 

be for better than a blanket licence of many properties & streets
Resident collect BLACK bins at least once a week and ensure all properties have bins. Landlords to be 

held responsible
Resident acknowledge that a large proportion of issues are XXXXX by those in social housing and 

take action as such eg require those involved in fly tipping to clear up themselves
Resident Yes, fine individual houses for bad/problem behaviour.  Order evictions of troublesome 

tenants.  Some properties are managed by letting agents who don’t manage them properly
Resident no more rented properties, I did not nut my house to overrun with rented properties (Not 

happy)
Resident No
Resident cant say
Resident Rented property should be inspected regular to check how many people live in house.  

Landlords should be fined if not keeping property up to standard
Resident If the Council are not prepared to put time and commitments to come up with alternative 

solutions the only benefit I can see if the Council getting extra money out of this scheme
Resident unsure
Resident There should be a basic standard that all landlords should adhere to, this needs to be 

monitored. All tenants should be fined for fly-tipping, the landlords being responsible for 
policing this and also fined if need be.

Resident yes make the landlords pay for any disturbance and not keeping the property up to 
standard

Resident yeah I think the council should keep regular inspections with private landlords and make 
sure they apply by the rules

Resident no
Resident limit the time of action taken after complaint made
Resident quarterly
Resident No - HMO's are not suitable accommodations in small residential 'working peoples' streets, 

the nuisance and noise levels of 4 and 5 random peoples crammed into small terraced 
houses meant for small families is unworkable.

Resident no
Resident enforce penalties. Survey properties. Send out this type of questionnaire. Have strict 

appearance to regulations
Resident stricter controls , clauses in tenant agreements, more inspection of property 
Resident neighbourhood watch to patrol streets
Resident give tenants warnings about behaviours and community work if they do not comply. Such 

as litter picking / or cleaning of properties as they do not respect homes
Resident yes make the landlords pay to keep the area clean - if it hits their pockets things would 

soon improve
Resident yes - implement an "offsted" kind of checking team to visit agents and/or multiple 

landlords to ensure their papers/records/agency work is in order and deal with any 
problems directly with inadequate operators in both agency & landlord areas

Resident As stated in 11. If signs which state fines of £10,000 or £50,000, or a maximum prison 
sentence of five years are to mean anything, they need to be enforced

Resident Make sure they are educated on bins & make sure they have bins. Introduce residents 
parking and stop people entering play streets

Resident better licensing of the pubs here and police patrols to stop the kids who are local and gangs
Resident Article 4 already in place
Resident Council to be more strict and monitor situation better. More social housing and council 

housing to be made available. More affordable rent to be made available
Page 65



Resident If they are licensed the appearances of the properties could look better
Resident the parking is becoming a real problem, to the extent that you have a terraced two up two 

down made into bedsits with 3 to 4 people occupying the property and each having a car. 
Binmen sometime wont come up the street because theres too many cars so bins dont get 
emptied which is another big problem. The streets not big enough for the amount of cars 
that are in it. BIG PROBLEM we could do with permits for each house

Resident NO
Resident A cap on the number of HMO's within a set distance from properties- don’t use *** me 

exists in block therefore precedence is set. Need to consider residents parking schemes. 
Free for 1st car then pay for badges. Consider road markings to make access / parking 
better

Resident If the scheme helps to keep the area clearer our house prices should benefit
Resident No it requires a scheme to manage and reduce the ongoing and increasing issues caused by 

private rented properties

Proposed Fees

Q13 Should landlords who submit their applications more than 6 
months after the start date of the scheme, still receive a reduction?

Agree Disagree

Residents & Tenants 23 91

Landlords & Managing Agents 15 12

Not stated 24

Q14 Should landlords receive a reduced licence fee when they have 
more than one property that requires a licence?

Agree Disagree

Residents & Tenants 22 94

Landlords & Managing Agents 22 5

Not stated 22

Q15 Should accredited landlords receive a reduced licence fee? Agree Disagree

Residents & Tenants 45 64

Landlords & Managing Agents 21 5

Not stated 30

Q16 What payment instalment options should be offered to landlords?

12 
months

18 
months

24 
months

none other Not stated

Residents & tenants 42 3 12 45 3 24
Landlords & Managing 
Agents

7 3 9 2 6 9

Proposed licence conditions 

Q17 Do you agree with the proposed conditions which a licence 
holder would have to comply with?

Agree Disagree
Page 66



Residents & Tenants 92 11

Landlords & Managing Agents 15 9

Not stated 38

Q17a Please provide details of any conditions that you feel should be removed, amended or 
added

Landlord 3. The requirements of the licence are ridiculously stringent and sometimes beyond what 
the law of the land requires. It seems designed to put people off becoming private 
landlords. 4. The paperwork was burdensome and unnecessary and frankly laughable when 
it came to asking questions such as "How do you propose to cope with noisy neighbours? 
5. Responsible landlords were doing a good job anyway, and bad landlords would continue 
to be bad landlords.

Landlord I don’t agree to the scheme. It has no benefit to landlord. Just pay council….and no help 
provided

Landlord 19. It should be a choice not a condition to attend courses to avoid discrimination provided 
the licence holder has complied and is knowledgeable in all other aspects. 28. have no 
knowledge of this? should we not have been provided with a copy of this. 37. Do the 
council provide these packs? should we not have been provided with one

Landlord The only people who pay for the licences are the good & honest landlord. The poor quality 
& dishonest ones ignore this knowing the council will not do anything about them and their 
tenants are too scared to complain

Landlord The existing requirements are more than adequate as long as a third party eg an agent 
manager the property.  Go it alone landlords can sometimes skimp on quality and 
regulations

Landlord Not so much disagree but they seem incredibly strict when some things are in the hands of 
the tenant to report to the landlord, therefore if the landlord is required to inspect 
frequently (ie monthly or more) then tenants will be put off but how else can they be sure 
all items are continually complied with

Landlord The cost is very high.  I have 3 properties all kept to a high standard.  All landlord duties, ie 
gas etc are complete. Look at properties in poor condition and make these landlords pay.

Landlord Landlords should not require selective licenses and be vetted for all their properties if they 
have proven their competence through and accredited scheme

Resident  Linking this scheme into the wider drive of GMCA to be carbon neutral by 2038. So we 
have this monumental Mission Impossible-esque task at the moment, whereby but we as a 
city need to reduce carbon by 15% in the coming few years (including this year) if we have 
any hope to get to our carbon neutral target by 2038. I’ve given these comments as part of 
the wider consultation on GMCA’s city plan, but feel that this area here could be a good 
test case – if we were brave enough to step out in front and lead in this regard. The issue is 
that existing domestic housing stock contributes 33% of carbon emissions currently, and 
we need to massively upgrade housing stock (that is properly upgrade, not a Green Deal 
type of scenario). But this is just words on paper unless we address (a) Finance and (b) 
Builder training. For the first part I’ll expand on how I see this linking into the licensing 
scheme below. I think if it was possible, we can be cunning and use this new licensing 
scheme as a way to forge ahead and lead the way showing how we, even as a poorer 
community that has lots of issues, can still be a leader for Greater Manchester in this 
regard.

a.       Finance: retrofitting houses won't happen unless we figure out how it's going to be 
paid for. In my opinion, we need to look at how we can encourage homeowners or 
landlords to undertake retrofit using their OWN cash. There is enough money around, just 
perhaps not in government coffers. So since landlords are the ones with the money, what 
is stopping us from legislating that any new landlords have to prove that the property 
meets a rigorous energy standard if they want to let them out? This way they will be the 
ones that contribute financially to this massive task we have ahead of us to reduce carbon. 
Obstacles to this or potential issues I see would be: 

Page 67



                                                               i.      That it’s too much of a change and that legislators 
and those in authority won’t have the bravery to do something like this – but we have to 
realize we’re in a climate emergency at the moment and even this action is probably too 
little too late. 
                                                             ii.      Using the current EPC system of A, B, C etc probably 
won't be good enough as it's too much a tick-box exercise that is too rough and won't 
account for whether the retrofit is done correctly or not (e.g. whether there was good 
insulation install with no gaps, proven airtightness levels, proven ventilation installed and 
commissioned correctly, correct type of insulation used for moisture risk, etc). EPCs on the 
other hand are too general at best, and appear to often be done by Domestic Energy 
Assessors who often don't even go into a property! As one DEA said to me, he estimated 
that "about half of EPCs are not worth the paper they're written on".

Resident That they are responsible for conduct of their tenants in their houses
Resident That no drugs (cannabis or otherwise) be used in their premises
Resident Standards of furniture & fittings / décor & condition of the property
Resident keep clean and remove rubbish in the correct bins
Resident property exterior to be maintained. Noisy/problem residents removed
Resident I have not seen the proposed licence conditions
Resident don’t know
Resident should be fined if tenants dump rubbish. Apply for parking permits 2 per house as families 

on this street cant park due to the amount of students parking.
Resident keep clean and remove all rubbish correctly
Resident Landlords should be made responsible for fly tipping
Resident The landlord vet new tenants. The landlord responsible for the tenants behaviour & any 

problems with them 
Resident Licensing is wrong we are all equal and everyone should be able to live where they want 

without a licensee. Licensing will push up rents in the designated areas and localise a 
certain type of tenant rather than allow/provide for full integration into the whole society 
and sociaety starts with your front door.

Resident payment of a fee should not be necessary. Instead key stipulation should be inspections
Resident Some landlords have trusted letting agents to manage their properties and could be 

unaware, or unable to control what is happening because of his other layer of 
management

Resident You cannot monitor persons living in properties , I had 9 beds took into next door living in 
properties don’t know how many people were living there

Resident don’t no the proposed conditions
Resident Make sure landlords visit their properties on a regular basis and make sure their tenants 

are getting rid of their rubbish in the correct manner
Resident they should be liable for any mess their tenants make any disturbance
Resident yeah I think it should be made clear to private landlords what the proposed conditions are 

and tenants that go in a private property should be assessed very carefully and fit into area 
because sometimes some of the tenants are not ideal.

Resident that all rubbish from previous tenants is taken to a tip
Resident landlords should maintain their properties & be subject to regular 6 monthly inspections by 

the council or else the licence should be revoked
Resident windows should have curtains up t them not rags nor clothing hung outside & inside 

windows
Resident If going to do major repairs people on each side should be notified. When work was 

happening next door to me I did not know, hammering etc 6 days a week for 2 1/2 months
Resident there shouldn’t be a fee with renting our house to tenants
Resident There should be a cap on bonds and how much they should  ask for upfront as its far too 

much for working class or unemployed
Resident should be fined for non recycling would keep more rubbish off the streets
Resident where streets have alleygates, they should be responsible for provision of keys
Resident In fact most of what you  propose is already covered by law in place or delat with by 

reputable agents. So all you appear to be achieving is double charge for servcies already 
being handled by agents

Page 68



Resident private rented properties are 'private' - I see no benefit in the council getting involved. I see 
it only as another method of the council trying to increase revenue

Resident I am not a landlord with commercial interests. I feel it would be inappropriate for me to 
add my comments

Resident bins & parking
Resident The licence scheme is not going to solve broader issues in society
Resident Landlords to be made more accountable
Resident Landlords should prove their tenants have alley keys bins and should check this regular. I 

think there should be a limit on the number of houses they make into houses of multiple 
occupancy. An area should have a limit on the number of houses that are houses of 
multiple occupancy as these types of house do not support community cohesion. 

Resident I feel if a landlord has one property being investigated / monitored for breaches there 
should be a 12 month satisfaction gap before another of their direct family member can 
apply for a HMO (know a situation where wife/ oldest son & father each are named 
landlord for a problem landlord)

Resident all

The proposal

Q18 Do you agree with the proposal to introduce Selective Licensing 
in the proposed area?

Agree Disagree

Residents & Tenants 91 24

Landlords & Managing Agents 7 20

Not stated 23

Q18a If you have any comments regarding any aspect of the licensing proposal, please 
provide them
Landlord has failed over the last 10 years. If it was successful there would be no need for it a 3rd 

time
Landlord I cannot understand the need for selective licensing in these areas other than creating 

extra revenue for council's and thus consider them unfair and appose.

Please consider my view within consultation.
Landlord If you were to go ahead, please ensure the high fees we have to pay for little or no service 

from you
Landlord 1. In the first instance, the fee was far too high and disproportionate to benefits. 2. It is 

grossly unfair that landlords have to pay the same fee whether they join the scheme 1 
month or 4 years before the licence ends. 6. We have seen no evaluation of the 
effectiveness of the previous scheme, in particular its cost effectiveness. 7. It is unfair that 
certain parts of Salford are licensed and other parts are not. 9. To conclude, we are totally 
opposed to any form of landlord licencing scheme.

Landlord It doesn’t make any sense…..what is the purpose…. What is the benefit to landlords paying 
council

Landlord already been licensed & wouldn’t have made any difference had it not been
Landlord Lot of text please see full comments – in landlord letters
Landlord I have no intrinsic objection to the scheme; my main concern is the relativity high fee which 

is a burden to responsible landlords at a time when there are other financial pressures 
(originating mainly from government policy) upon us. I feel the Council must transparently 
ensure that any fees cover the cost of administering the scheme.                                                                                                                            
Comments to Q13 - Landlords who purchase a property after the start date of a scheme, 
but submit and application within 6 months of that purchase, should still receive a 
discount, in my opinion. they should only have to pay a fee in proportion to the time 
remaining under that particular selective licensing scheme (for example, if a landlord 
purchases a property at the end of the fourth year of the scheme, they should have to pay 

Page 69



one fifth of the fee, as there is only one year of the scheme remaining.                                                                                                                   
The other main problem that I have with SL is that, for a responsible landlord wishing to 
purchase a property within the scheme area, it is virtually impossible to obtain a mortgage. 
I know of only one bank (Handelsbanken) that will grant a mortgage for a property in a SL 
area, and even then only in certain limited circumstances. In some cases, this may lead to 
greater housing dereliction and/or vacant properties in an area.

Landlord As a landlord I see this scheme both here and in other areas here I own properties as 
purely a means to generate extra revenue for the council. I never see any of the money fed 
back into the areas.

Landlord didn’t notice much difference when it was implemented previously. Think regeneration / 
development makes a bigger impact to feel of the area & attracting new residents

Landlord No need for the selective license in this area
Landlord I request you to drop the entire selective licensing. Thanks
Landlord having held a licence for a number of years I can only say that it has been positive and has 

given my tenants confidence
Landlord No problem in the street in which I have houses.  Seems like a sledgehammer to crack a nut 

( I have to be a licensing landlord for another property in M6)
Landlord It will drive landlord away and deprive the area 
Landlord Yes and No.  Useful to have the guidance as we were new landlords during the last 

selective licensing period.  But a big cost when only one property.  The documents tend to 
show issues with HMOs not general private rentals with agents (who have their own 
guidance too) the consultation docs are useful and if the licensing makes the area better 
and tenants happier and safer it makes sense to do it 

Landlord As a good landlord with a good letting agent I do not need to be licensed.  I was previously 
licensed from 2010 to 2012 and again from 2013 to 2018 but nothing changed for my 
tenants as I always keep up to date and abide by all he laws surrounding prs.  My tenants 
have not had an increase in rent for 8 years but I will be be passing on the costs of this 
licence that you effective

Landlord We are opposed to this scheme for our rental property in Salford.
We bought the property for our Son to live in whilst at university on the understanding that 
the Council wanted to improve the area by mixing private and social housing together.
Our Son has since graduated and moved out of the area and we now rent the house out to 
ex-colleagues of his at very much lower than ‘market rates’ and feel we unfairly have been 
caught up in your campaign against rogue landlords.
While we support any reasonable efforts to crack down on unfair/unsafe practices we 
don’t believe our situation should require us to apply for a licence.  We look after our 
tenants and property.  We maintain it to a high standard and ensure it is safe and supplied 
with the necessary electrical and gas safety certificates.
We do not live locally to Salford and would have to rely on our tenants to be available for 
the myriad inspections and other testing required in your proposals.  We make very little 
profit out of our arrangement with our tenants but, equally, don’t believe we should 
operate our house at a loss.
We also disagree with your assertion that private rental is leading to the untidiness and 
other anti-social activities to which you refer.  Indeed, our experience is that private 
owners and landlords in the area maintain a much better state of affairs than so-called 
“Social Housing” tenants.
We were encouraged by the Pendleton Project to buy our house in order, in their words, to 
keep a healthy balance between private and social housing and now feel that we are being 
penalised for so doing.
We would hope that you can consider our concerns and not opt for an ill-considered, one-
size-fits-all solution to what we’re not convinced is a genuine problem in the area of Salford 
in which our house is located.

Landlord I think new builds should be exempt and my son and his friends should be able to have 
people stay over in the lounger for occasional sleep overs.

Landlord Highfield Road should be taken off
Landlord The proposal adds additional costs to professional and law abiding landlords. Where 

implemented elsewhere in the city it has not resolved the issues that were present. The 
funds are perceived to support processing paperwork and duplication of efforts for law 

Page 70



abiding landlords more than they go to resolving the underlying issues. As suggested above 
(Q12) there are more effective options which should be investigated.

Resident Yes and No. The proposed cost is too high for landlords considering the current economy 
climate - considering the goal
is to prevent criminal landlords from operating. The proposed cost sounds more like a tool 
to repel potential investors.
I think you should start off with a lower cost first, and increase according to effectiveness 
of this proposal
in bringing down crime rates etc and boosting housing demand / property growth in the 
area.
- Can you provide an outline of how the revenue generated from this proposal will 
contribute to the aforementioned
benefits this proposal will bring about (eg, how will it directly reduce crime rates?)

Resident thank you for taking action
Resident Does landlord licensing mean our area will be flooded with houses of possibly short let’s ? 

ie : people not staying for any length of time , or longer lets where maybe they will stay 
awhile and become part of the community? 
What protection or input is there from the community ,for the long term residents ? 

Resident Overall I think it’s a great idea. Since I moved into Amersham Park road I have seen a 
general decline in the appearance of the road, mainly from the rented properties that 
change tenants frequently. Bins are left out most of the week, front gardens are not 
maintained and are full of kids bikes and litter. There are also some properties that seem to 
be MO that although only have one allocated space seem to have about four cars which is 
not ideal and leads to issues with access.

Resident Please find attached my response to the consultation on the proposed Selective Licensing 
Scheme for Langworthy, Weaste and Seedley. I could not be more supportive. It is a 
proactive system which should improve the safety and standards of tenants in the area.
In one Manchester scheme, my colleague tells me that 1/3 of Gas Safety Certificates were 
dated in the week before the License Application. This tells me that many landlords do not 
currently view compliance with the housing legislation as a priority. Raising money from 
fees for landlords to fund schemes like this and improve the area are to be applauded.
I would be happy for the scheme to be expanded to include as many streets as possible 
before you run into trouble with the Department for Communities and Local Government.

Resident I do not want a landlord licensing scheme in my area. And wish market forces to determine 
rents and prices and not government. Because with the licensing scheme my area will 
depreciate even further

Resident all landlords should need a licence to stop the area continuing to go into a slum area
Resident Good idea, we have so many people living in these HMO's we don’t know how many live in 

them. Some of them have give other neighbours lots of trouble
Resident something needs to be done about landlords or agencies renting out properties to anyone. 

It seems some landlords only interested in filling the property and not the local impact 
these people have on a street.

Resident It is a good idea. It will help to get a bigger picture of the area. Also many landlords don’t 
live in the local area, so don’t understand the frustrations when they have bad tenants.

Resident I would like an inclusion in the licence forms for landlords that drugs (cannabis or 
otherwise) will not be allowed in their premises

Resident No drugs to be used in any property. No more HMO's in our area making landlords lots of 
money & so local not able to afford to buy a house

Resident A person should check on properties to make sure they are kept in good condition. A lot of 
money was spent on regeneration lets keep up the standards. The landlords are just out to 
make a quick buck out of vulnerable people.

Resident HMO's should be banned completely 
Resident I think some amendments should be made to those that let to student properties whilst 

protecting the students at the same time
Resident I feel there are too many private landlords on this street every house is a HMO bringing the 

area down especially house prices who wants to live in the middle of a student village!
Resident Landlords should be responsible for the upkeep and cleanliness of properties
Resident someone should check on all properties every six week or so to make sure there keeping 

Page 71



up with them. Its all about the money with the landlords
Resident A stamp addressed reply envelope would have been a good idea
Resident NO licensing : simply crack down hard & firm on dodgy landlords and delinquent tenants: it 

will be a lot cheaper than this whole licensing programme. We are not communists!
Resident does the scheme have the power of the law behind it & can they act against landlords who 

do not follow the rules
Resident licensing properties is the right way to control this problem. At times, it is like living in a 

SLUM
Resident rather than introducing the scheme to generate revenue, real action should be taken 

against those responsible for negative behaviours. This proposal absolves them of 
responsibility

Resident In general the area looks very run down and dirty. Landlords should ensure that properties 
are kept in good condition, including gardens kept tidy, not unkept and unsightly. We have 
seen an increase in anti-social behaviour and car congestion. I house (rented) on our 
avenue has 4 cars alone. There is not enough bins and the area is overflowing with bin bags 
& rubbish. I dont know when we last had a road sweeper. The whole proposed area needs 
a good tidy, paint in certain parts and then maintained by landlords, owners & council.

Resident I think the residents are worried mostly about HMO, I think HMOs should be monitored 
more closely

Resident Don’t want any rented properties HMO, I would move if I could afford it 
Resident tenants need to be more carefully vetted a considerable proportion bring anti social 

behaviour problems with them, leading to problems for decent citizens.  Properties are 
very unkempt /scruffy bad for area.  Landlords only interested in the monetary aspect 
rather than investing in teh area,  They allow tenants to live in an unkempt fashion.

Resident is this just another money spinner for the Council or are they concerned about the state of 
the area

Resident this licence would cause more increase in rent
Resident should be more selective eg no more than 10% of properties granted licence on each st
Resident Do it soon!
Resident complete licensing not selective
Resident if this goes through, you should make sure that better standards are kept in this area of 

Seedley at the present time most of it is a disgrace. PS if you want feedback you should 
have the curtesy to send a SAE I am a pensioner

Resident I strongly feel this should not go ahead
Resident I don’t understand most of these questions and this is hard for people to have a say
Resident all landlords should be licensed
Resident this is undoubtedly going to cause charges and subsequently an increase in rent to all 

tenants affected by these proposals - is this what you really want to happen??? The 
tenants will ultimately bear the brunt of this and of course and council rent assistance will 
be increased to cover this and as such will end up costing the council money!!!

Resident Council tax is constantly rising with no evidence of an improvement in the local area. Bins 
overflowing in the park, lack of bins in general. No effort to collect rubbish of encourage 
community members to clean out areas or lanes behind terraces. Help the community 
have pride in the area, dont tax the private landlords, its not their tenants lowering the 
value / character of the area 

Resident I do not own a set of properties as a commercial enterprise, nor have any knowledge or 
experience of this. This is why I have left sections of the above form blank. I do not know 
the value of Station Road properties.

Resident unnecessary just to keep the council busy it will increase rents for us shared working 
tenants

Resident I feel all landlords should have to apply otherwise they mess about with building specs etc 
whilst doing work so they remain below the threshold for HMO standard then they arent 
monitored  & property isnt equipped putting adjacent property at risk

Resident it is not need,  A FREE MARKET IS BETTER 

Page 72



Letters from Landlords and or Managing Agents

Page 73



Page 74



 

Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Letters from Residents

Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Results of the drop in event

A drop in session was held on the 1st May 2019, where there was 5 people in attendance. 
1 couple were landlords asking questions about licensing and 3 residents who were confirming their 
support of introducing selective licensing.

Response from Citizens Advice

Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Response from Residential Landlords Association

           

Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



                   

                                                                      
Other responses

 

                                                                                                                               

Page 108



 
 

REF NO  DATE 

Selective licence conditions 
 
In these conditions, “house” is meant to refer to the building or part of a building, which is licensed under 
Part 3 of the Housing Act 2004. 
 
“Authority” is meant to refer to the local housing authority, namely Salford City Council. 
 
Housing Act 2004 Prescribed Conditions 
1. If gas is supplied to the house, the Licence Holder must produce to the authority annually for their 
inspection, a gas safety certificate obtained in respect of the house within the last 12 months. 
 
2. The Licence Holder must keep electrical appliances and furniture made available by him in the house 
in a safe condition: and 
 
i) Must supply the authority, on demand, with a declaration by him as to the safety of such appliances 
and furniture. 
 
3. The licence holder must: 
 
i) Ensure that a smoke alarm is installed on each storey of the house on which there is a room used 
wholly or partly as living accommodation; and 
ii) Keep each such alarm in proper working order; and 
iii) Supply the authority, on demand, with a declaration by him as to the condition and positioning of 
such alarms. 
 
4. The Licence Holder must provide each occupier of the house with a written statement of the 
conditions of the terms on which they occupy the house.  The Licence Holder shall provide a copy of the 
said terms to the authority on demand. 
 
5. The licence holder must: 
 
i) Ensure that a carbon monoxide alarm is installed in any room in the house which is used wholly or 
partly as living accommodation and contains a solid fuel burning combustion appliance; 
ii) Keep each such alarm in proper working order; and supply the authority, on demand, with a 
declaration by him as to the condition and positioning of such alarms. 
 
6. The Licence Holder must obtain references from all persons who wish to occupy the house.  The 
Licence Holder shall provide a copy of the said references to the authority on demand. 
 
Conditions relating to property 
 
7. Where the property is a house in multiple occupation the Licence Holder must produce to the local 
housing authority annually for their inspection, a Fire Detection & Alarm System Certificate (in accordance 
with BS5839) obtained in respect of the house within the last 12 months. 
 
8. If accommodation within the house is provided on a furnished basis and includes electrical 
appliances, the Licence Holder must produce to the authority for their inspection a portable appliance test 
(PAT) certificate within the first twelve months of the licence period. 
 
9. The Licence Holder will ensure that any furniture supplied in relation to a tenancy or licence is in 
safe and good condition and maintained or replaced as far as it is the Licence Holders responsibility 
throughout the tenancy (under the terms and conditions of the licence or tenancy). 
 
 
 
 

Page 109



 
 

REF NO  DATE 

Management of the licensed property 
10. The Licence Holder must provide the occupiers of the house and the occupiers of any adjoining 
properties, with details of the following: 
 
i) Name of the licence holder or managing agent; 
ii) A contact address and daytime telephone number; 
iii) An emergency contact telephone number. 
 
11. This information must be supplied within 28 days and if the property is a HMO it should be clearly 
displayed in a prominent position within the house. An emergency contact telephone number for the licence 
holder and/or management agency shall also be available and notified to the authority. 
 
12. The Licence Holder shall ensure that occupants of the house receive written confirmation detailing 
arrangements in place to deal with repair issues and emergencies should they arise. 
 
13. The Licence Holder will provide each occupant of the house with copies of user manuals for any 
installations or equipment provided as part of the agreement for the occupation of the house. 
 
14. Where the property is a House in Multiple Occupation, the Licence Holder shall display at all times it 
is in force, a copy of the licence certificate and licence conditions in a prominent position inside the house 
where all occupiers will be able to view the said documents.  Where the property is occupied by a single 
household, the licence holder shall provide the tenants with a copy of the licence certificate and licence 
conditions which are in force. 
 
15. The Licence Holder will arrange to undertake a detailed inventory to be agreed with each occupant 
upon commencement of their occupation of the house and kept on file by the licence holder at their 
business address. (Draft Inventory forms are available from Salford City Council). 
 
16. The Licence Holder will not discriminate against prospective occupiers of the house on the grounds 
of race, disability, gender, religion or sexual orientation. 
 
17. The Licence Holder must ensure that all information and documents that are provided by the 
landlord to their tenants are in a language/form that they can understand. 
 
18. The Licence Holder must act lawfully and reasonably in requiring any advanced payments from 
occupiers, in handling rents, in returning deposits and in making deductions from deposits. The Licence 
Holder will provide any occupiers/prospective occupiers with the following information: 
 
i) The amount of rent payable; 
ii) The details of any deposit required; 
iii) Details of what the deposit covers and arrangements for return; 
iv) The frequency of payments; 
v) The details of any utilities or other charges included in the rent; 
vi) The responsibility for payment of council tax; 
vii) The responsibility for payment of utilities and arranging provision of such. 
 
19. The Licence Holder and/or his manager shall undertake property management training courses 
where required to do so by the authority. 
 
20. The Licence Holder and/or his manager must ensure that the property is inspected at regular 
intervals, of at least once every 12 months, to ensure that the conditions of the tenancy agreement are 
being adhered too.  Should the Licence Holder receive a complaint about the property or tenancy, the 
Licence Holder and/or his manager must ensure that the property is inspected to investigate such 
complaint.  For example, if a complaint was made with regards to the accumulation of rubbish in the garden 
of the property, or in the event that payments of two months’ rent are missed, a visit must be made to the 
property to ensure that the property is secure, tidy and has not been abandoned. 

Page 110



 
 

REF NO  DATE 

 
21. The Licence Holder and his managing agent must inform the licensing team of the authority within 
ten working days of any changes in their circumstances as follows: 
 
i) Details of any unspent convictions not previously disclosed to the Local Authority that may be 
relevant to the Licence Holder and/or the property manager and their fit and proper person status and in 
particular any such conviction in respect of any offence involving fraud or dishonesty, or violence or drugs 
or any offence listed in Schedule 3 to the Sexual Offences Act 2003; 
ii) Details of any finding by a court or tribunal against the Licence Holder and /or the manager that 
he/she has practiced unlawful discrimination on grounds of sex, colour, race, ethnic or national origin or 
disability in, or in connection with, the carrying on of any business; 
iii) Details of any contravention on the part of the Licence Holder or manager of any provision of any 
enactment relating to housing, public health, environmental health or landlord and tenant law which led to 
civil or criminal proceedings resulting in a judgment or finding being made against him/her; 
iv) Information about any property the Licence Holder or manager owns or manages or has owned or 
managed which has been the subject of: 
a. A control order under section 379 of the Housing Act 1985 in the five years preceding the date of 
the application; or 
b. Any appropriate enforcement action described in section 5(2) of the Act; 
v) Information about any property the Licence Holder or manager owns or manages or has owned or 
managed for which a local housing authority has refused to grant a licence under Part 2 or 3 of the Act, or 
has revoked a licence in consequence of the Licence Holder breaching the conditions of his/her licence; 
vi) Information about any property the Licence Holder or manager owns or manages or has owned or 
managed that has been the subject of an interim or final management order under the Housing Act 2004; 
vii) Advertising of the property for sale; 
ii) Change in managing agent or the instruction of a managing agent; 
i) Change of address of Licence Holder or landlord 
ii) The undertaking of any substantial works to the property including conversions and modernisations. 
 
22. The Licence Holder must complete and return any correspondence from the Housing Crime 
Reduction Team regarding the closure of rear alleyways using gating in the vicinity of the house. Such 
correspondence must be returned as requested in the correspondence supplied. 
 
23. Where there are alley-gates installed to the rear of the licensed property, the Licence Holder must: 
 

 Take responsibility for holding a key for any alley-gates which are in place or which are installed;  

 and at the time of letting, provide all new tenants with details of Salford City Council’s, Housing 
Crime Reduction Team (0161 604 7719) along with instructions on how to obtain a key. 

 Ensure that all new tenants are advised of the need to keep the alley gates locked. 
 
24. The Licence Holder must ensure that any persons involved with the management of the house are 
to the best of their knowledge “fit and proper persons” for the purposes of the Act. 
 
25. The Licence Holder must not unreasonably cause or permit the water supply or drainage system 
that is used by the occupiers of the house to be interrupted.  
 
26. The Licence Holder must not unreasonably cause the gas or electricity supply that is used by 
occupiers of the property to be interrupted.  
 
27. The Licence Holder must provide each occupier of the house with a copy of the Licence Conditions 
which are currently in force. 
 
28. The Licence Holder must provide each occupier of the house with a copy of the Councils “Flooding 
advice for householders” leaflet. 
 

Page 111



 
 

REF NO  DATE 

Security 
29. All new occupants must be provided with written information advising how they can reduce the 
likelihood of being a victim of burglary by ensuring that all reasonable steps are taken to secure the house 
e.g. by locking external doors, closing and locking windows, security marking personal valuables etc. 
 
Preventing and dealing with anti-social behaviour 
30. The Licence Holder must take all reasonable and all practicable steps for preventing and dealing 
effectively with anti-social behaviour, including ensuring that any future written statement of the terms and 
conditions on which the house is occupied contains a clause holding the occupants responsible for any 
anti-social behaviour by themselves and/or their visitors. The Licence Holder must ensure that all 
occupants are aware of the existence of this clause by advising them upon taking up residence. The 
Licence Holder and/or his manager are required to undertake an incremental process of investigation of 
any complaints which have been made either directly to them, or via the Local Authority, regarding their 
occupiers. For the purposes of these conditions, anti-social behaviour is taken to comprise behaviour by 
the occupants of the house and/or their visitors, which causes or is likely to cause harassment, alarm, 
distress, nuisance or annoyance to other occupants of the house, to anyone who visits the house, including 
communal areas, or to persons residing in, visiting or working in the locality of the house. 
 
31. The Licence Holder will ensure that the occupants of the house are aware of the services available 
to them and how they can report nuisance and anti-social behaviour to the authority. 
 
32. The Licence Holder and/or their nominated agent must have the facilities to receive and respond to 
initial complaints about their occupiers’ behaviour. 
 
Occupation 
33. The Licence Holder must ensure that only bedrooms are to be used to sleep in. No persons shall 
sleep within any common areas including shared lounges. 
 
34. The use and level of occupancy of each unit of accommodation shall not be changed without the 
prior written approval of the authority. 
 
 
Environmental management/amenity of the neighbourhood 
35. The Licence Holder must ensure that all outbuildings, yards, forecourts and gardens surrounding 
the house are kept in a clean and tidy condition and free from infestations.  
 
36. The Licence Holder shall ensure that suitable and adequate provision for refuse storage and 
collection is made at the house. This shall include the provision of closable bins of suitable capacity as 
specified by the council. Arrangements shall be made immediately for the proper collection and disposal of 
any rubbish additional to that within the bins and such rubbish shall be stored within the property at the rear 
if feasible. 
 
37. The Licence Holder shall provide tenants with information packs regarding waste and recycling 
services including collection dates and how to present their waste for collection, including the requirement 
to return the refuse containers to the property on the same day they are emptied by the council.  Where a 
notice is served against the property, the landlord shall ensure a copy is provided to each tenant at the start 
of their tenancy agreement. 
 
38. The Licence Holder shall ensure that a full set of bins is available for new tenants before they move 
in:- 
 
i) black bin: general waste 
ii) blue bin: pulpable waste(i.e. paper & cardboard) 
iii) brown bin: co-mingle waste(i.e. tin cans, glass & plastic bottles) 
iv) pink lidded bin or kerbside caddy: bio waste(i.e. food & garden waste) 
 

Page 112



 
 

REF NO  DATE 

39. The Licence Holder shall ensure all bins are empty before a new tenant moves in. 
 
40. The Licence Holder shall ensure all items cleared from properties before new tenant moves in are 
disposed of properly. 
 
41. The Licence Holder shall inform tenants of how to dispose of ‘bulky waste’. 
 
42. The Licence Holder shall inform their tenants that Salford City Council has introduced a charge of 
£25 to provide new domestic waste bins; however, recycling bins are provided free of charge.  It would be 
advisable that a refundable deposit is taken by the Licence Holder to ensure that a replacement can be 
provided if lost or stolen by the tenant. 
 
 

Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE 

TO:  THE PROPERTY AND REGENERATION BRIEFING
ON: 12th AUGUST 2019

SUBJECT: Application to list Land on the East side of Legh Street, Salford (Cheltenham 
Cresent Playing Field) as an Asset of Community Value pursuant to Part 5, Chapter 3 of the 
Localism Act 2011 and the Assets of Community Value (England) Regulations 2012

RECOMMENDATION:

That the land on the East Side of Legh Street (Cheltenham Crescent Playing Field) is an 
Asset of Community Value and should be included on the council’s list. 

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT:

On 7th November 2018 Bais Malka Ltd t/a Beis Malka Girls School nominated Cheltenham 
Crescent Playing Field for inclusion in Salford City Council’s List of Assets of Community 
Value. The nomination was accepted as valid on 17th October 2018.

The purpose of this report is for the City Mayor to determine whether Land on the East Side 
of Leigh Street, Salford (Cheltenham Crescent Playing Field) is land of community value. 

If the City Mayor decides that the site is land of community value, to instruct Salford City 
Council and Joint Legal Services to:

a) Include the listing of Land on the East Side of Legh Street, Salford (Cheltenham 
Crescent Playing Field) in the City Council’s List of Assets of Community Value.

b) Enter a restriction on the title in accordance with the Land Registration Rules 2003 
as amended by the Assets of Community Value (England) Regulations 2012.

c) Include the listing of Land on the East Side of Legh Street, Salford (Cheltenham 
Crescent Playing Field) in the Local Land Charges Register.

If the decision is made that Land on the East Side of Legh Street, Salford (Cheltenham 
Crescent Playing Field) is not land of community value to instruct Salford City Council and 
Joint Legal Services to:

a) Provide written reasons for the decision to the applicant.
b) Include Land on the East Side of Legh Street, Salford (Cheltenham Crescent Playing 

Field) in the City Council’s list of land nominated by unsuccessful community 
nominations for a period of five years from the date of entry on the register.

Page 115

Agenda Item 3c



BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:
(Available for public inspection)

Localism Act 2011 (“the Act”)

Assets of Community Value (England) Regulations 2012 

Community Right to Bid: Non-statutory advice note for Local Authorities

KEY DECISION:  No

1. INTRODUCTION

Part 5 Chapter 3 of the Localism Act, and the Assets of Community Value (England) 
Regulations, which together deliver the “Community Right to Bid”, aim to encourage 
communities to become more active in joining together to save and take over assets which 
are significant to them. The scheme gives communities the opportunity to identify assets of 
community value and have them listed on a List of Assets of Community Value that every 
council is required to maintain.

The council has a requirement to consider each application to have an asset listed against 
criteria set out in the legislation.

The criteria are essentially;
a) The application comes from a Qualifying Group (as defined in the Act)
b) That the asset to which the application refers does, or has in the recent past, have a 

principle use which furthers the communities’ social wellbeing or social interests
c) The asset is realistically likely to further the communities’ social wellbeing or social 

interests in the future.

Further detail of the definitions and application of these criteria is set out below.

The impact of an asset being listed as an Asset of Community Value is that, if it is put out 
for disposal, there are certain time restrictions and delays which have to be considered in 
the process. However the owner is not restricted as to whom it can dispose, and what value 
it accepts for the disposal.

An application for listing can be made on any asset, regardless of the owner. The council, 
as in this case, can also be asked to consider listing assets that it owns itself. In these 
circumstances it must consider the strength of the application against the criteria 
established regardless of that ownership. Any implications for the council should it decide to 
dispose of a listed asset have to be dealt with within the disposal process separately.

2. CONSIDERATION OF THIS APPLICATION 

Page 116



2.1 Site details

This application relates to a playing field off Cheltenham Cresent which is located within the 
Kersal ward of the City Council’s area. The field is secured with gated access only from 
Cheltenham Crescent which bounds the site to the east. The site is bounded to the north, 
south and west by residential dwellings.

Site owner/interested parties

Owner: 

Salford City Council 
Civic Centre
Chorley Road
Swinton
M27 5AS

The Council has confirmed that the site was previously used by schools with no onsite 
playing field provision and youth teams but has not been in use since 2016. The land was 
designated for use by Brentnall and Broughton Jewish primary schools.

2.2 Community Nomination

The application was submitted by Bais Malka Ltd t/a Beis Malka Girls School on 7th 
November 2018. 

The application is supported by a document entitled: ‘Community Right to Bid Nomination 
Form’ as well as a document providing data for the financial year ending March 2017 for 
Bais Malka Ltd and providing its charity number and details of the charity. The charity 
supports and runs a school for Jewish orthodox girls. Its activities include education and 
training; the prevention or relief of poverty and religious activities.

The applicant, is a registered charity with a local connection within the meaning of 
Regulations 4 and 5 of the Assets of Community Value (England) Regulations 2012. 
Therefore the application constitutes a valid Community Nomination.

2.3 The Procedure and Comments on the Nomination

The owner of the site is Salford City Council. An email notification was sent on 7th 
November 2018 to advise the People Directorate of the submitted ACV application. At the 
same time a notification was sent to Salford City Council finance department and 
Manchester City Council Joint Legal Services. 

On 10th December 2018 a copy of a draft report was sent to Joint Legal Services, Salford 
City Council and Ward Councillors to ask for any comments they may have.

Comments have been received from Joint Legal Services and are incorporated into the 
main body of the report. 

2.4 The Use and Future Use of the Property

Page 117



“Furthering Social Wellbeing or Social Interests” test;

The Council has confirmed that the site was last used in 2016 with its last recorded school 
use being 2013. It was previously used to support schools in the local area without onsite 
playing field provision and was also available for use by youth teams (not associated with 
schools) for football – but only on a booking system. 

The Localism Act provides that ‘social interests’ include (in particular) each of the following: 
cultural interests; recreational interests and sporting interests. However, the list is not 
exhaustive and the terms should be considered broadly. 

There is no statutory definition of "local community" nor any guidance as to how it is to be 
determined. In an appeal concerning allotments it was concluded that "there is nothing in 
the 2011 Act which suggests that a facility has to be equally valuable or equally accessible 
to all sectors of the local community.” It was also accepted that "local community" should be 
interpreted in accordance with the Oxford English Dictionary as "a body of people viewed 
collectively”. Given this, it is considered that whilst the use of the playing field would have 
only been used by a limited proportion of the community, in order to further the social 
wellbeing or interests of the local community it does not have to be the whole of the local 
community that will benefit, but can be groups with specific cultural, recreational or sporting 
interests as is the case here.

It is considered, therefore, that the past use of the property did further the social interests of 
the community.   

As the playing field is not in current use the next relevant test is set out in section 88(2) of 
the Localism Act (2011)  

Section 88(2) provides that land which is not in current use is land of community value if in 
the opinion of the local authority:  

(a) there was a time in the recent past when an actual use of the building or other land that 
was not an ancillary use furthered the social wellbeing or interests of the local community, 

and 

(b) it is realistic to think that there is a time in the next five years when there could be non-
ancillary use of the building or other land that would further (whether or not in the same way 
as before) the social wellbeing or social interests of the local community.  

“Recent Past” test;

The policy statement on assets of community value issued by DCLG in September 2011 
states that what is the “recent past” should be left to local authorities to decide because 
what is recent might be viewed differently in different circumstances. Although the site has 
not been used for three years, it is recommended that this is a short enough period of time 
for the last use to be considered to have taken place in the recent past. 

“Future Use” test;

Page 118



The field is currently un-used and its re-use would be at the discretion of the Council. 
However it could be brought back into use without difficulty and could be available for use 
by schools and sporting groups. In this instance it is reasonable to assume that there is a 
time in the next five years where the field could be brought back into use and that a non-
ancillary use of the field could further the social wellbeing or social interests of the local 
community.
 
2.5 Conclusion

Therefore it is concluded that the 3 criteria set out in the Introduction to the report have 
been met through the application and that the council accepts that Cheltenham Crescent 
Playing Field is an asset of community value.

3. IMPLICATIONS OF LISTING

If the Council accepts that the land is of community value (as concluded above) then the 
authority must cause the land to be included in its list of assets of community value. 

Land that is listed as an asset of community value will remain on the list for a period of five 
years beginning with the date of the entry unless the owner enters into a ‘relevant disposal’ 
of the land in accordance with the requirements of the Act. 

A ‘relevant disposal’ means a disposal of the freehold with vacant possession or the grant or 
assignment of a qualifying leasehold estate with vacant possession. A qualifying leasehold 
estate is one which, when granted, had at least 25 years to run. 

For the avoidance of doubt, the Act does not provide community interest groups with a right 
to purchase assets, entitle them to a discount or give them first refusal on any purchase.

Councillor Comments:
Ward Councillors have been consulted on the application. 

Cllr Peter Connor - No response has been received to date

Cllr Ari Leitner - As ward councillors, we have heard a lot recently of this playing field. Once 
upon a time, when I was growing up just a few hundred yards up the road, this field was 
used regularly by schools, educational and sports groups etc. It has been officially ‘out of 
use’ now for a number of years.
I was recently contacted by a group of students from a local college who wanted permission 
to use the playing field to kick a ball around during their lunch hour. The answer I received 
on the Council was: Unfortunately this site has not been used as a playing field for many 
years due to poor condition and drainage problems. The Council would not be able to 
consider this request at this time.
In recent months there have been complaints from neighbours of unauthorised and/or 
undesirable activities in the empty playing field. This has led to a mobile camera unit being 
erected in the property, at the astronomical cost of to the Council.
This field is a liability to the Council; no longer an asset. Currently, the local communities 
have no usage from this empty plot of land, with the Council footing the bill for the upkeep.

There is a shortage of buildings/land for the many private schools which serve the large 

Page 119



Jewish community in Kersal (and neighbouring Broughton). This playing field is prime 
location for such a local institution and selling it will rid the Council of the liability of its 
upkeep.

Cllr Arnold Saunders - I agree and consent to the application

SOURCE OF FUNDING: N/A

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS supplied by Ann Rowlands, Senior Lawyer of Joint Legal Service 
are discussed throughout the body of the report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS supplied by Gemma Singleton of Salford City Council

No financial implications.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: People Services

We are aware of the implication of the report with regard to our future internal use and 
acknowledge that these have no impact on the process of listing. We agree with the 
conclusions of the report.

CONTACT OFFICER: Adele Stewart TEL. NO. 0161 604 7792

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): Kersal

Annex – Special Issues Concerning the Future Use of the Playing Field

The following is provided for explanation and does not impact on the recommendations 
made above;

The following comments have also been provided from Guy Twemlow of Joint Legal 
Services in relation to the question of whether the Council could transfer land (contained on 
the Community Asset List) to an Academy (125 year lease) without any delays associated 
with a moratorium period. 

It considers the potential for an exemption by reason 14 (1) (a) sub paragraph (2) below- 
Academy arrangements under section 1 of the Academies Act 2010:

“My understanding is that when an owner of land or a building listed as an ACV wishes to 
dispose of it, the community is given the opportunity to develop a bid and raise capital to 
buy the land. This means that an owner of land listed as an ACV is restricted from disposing 
of their land until a certain period of time has passed (i.e. the moratorium period), during 

Page 120



which only bids from community groups can be accepted (however there is no obligation to 
sell to the group).

My understanding is that an owner of land included in a local authority's ACV list must not 
enter into a "relevant disposal" of the land unless three conditions are met (A to C) (section 
95(1), Localism Act 2011).

 Condition A: the person, who wants to enter into a relevant disposal, must have 
notified the local authority in writing that they want to enter into a relevant disposal of 
the land (section 95(2), LA 2011). Once notification has been given, the local 
authority must: amend the relevant entry on the ACV list, providing the date the 
notice was received and the end of the moratorium periods; notify the nominator of 
those matters if the listing was a result of a community nomination; and publicise the 
information in the area where the land is situated. (Section 97, LA 2011.)

 Condition B: that either: the interim moratorium period has ended without the local 
authority having received during that period, a written request (however expressed) 
from any community interest group (see Community interest group) for the group to 
be treated as a potential bidder in relation to the land; or the full moratorium period 
has ended. (Section 95(3), LA 2011).

 Condition C: the protected period has not ended (Section 95(4), LA 2011).

Certain disposals are exempt, and as such do not have to satisfy conditions A to C.

As per Schedule 3 to the ACV Regulations 2012 the restrictions on disposals do not apply 
to a disposal of land to be held for the purposes of:

 a school as defined in section 4 of the Education Act 1996 (not including 
independent schools other than those in respect of which Academy arrangements 
have been entered into by the Secretary of State under section 1 of the Academies 
Act 2010);

 a 16 to 19 Academy; or
 an institution within the further education sector as defined in section 91(3) of the 

Further and Higher Education Act 1992.

Demonstrating that a disposal of an ACV is an exempt disposal will mean that an owner will 
not trigger the ACV moratorium provisions.  

As per section 96 of the LA 2011, a "relevant disposal" for the purposes of the section 95 
moratorium provisions is either of the following:

 A disposal of a freehold estate with vacant possession.
 A grant or assignment of a leasehold estate (for a term which, when granted, had at 

least 25 years to run) with vacant possession.

If the Council decided to transfer/sell a site to a school then it would likely be a "relevant 
disposal". But if the disposal was to a school that satisfied schedule 3 to the ACV 
Regulations then the moratorium provisions will not be triggered.”

The above comments conclude that the exemptions apply to the process of disposal of the 
site and not its listing. As such the above comments do not alter the recommendation that 
the site should be added to the list of asset of community value. 

Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Part 1 ITEM NO.

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE  

TO THE PROPERTY AND REGENERATION BRIEFING
FOR APPROVAL ON

12th August 2019
  

TITLE: Disposal of land at Liverpool Street and Kara Street, Salford

RECOMMENDATIONS:

The City Mayor is recommended to: 

1. Approve the disposal of the subject site to the preferred bidder, subject to a 
formal report to be brought forward approving the detailed terms and 
conditions.

2. Instruct and authorise Urban Vision Partnership to progress, negotiate and 
finalise heads of terms with the preferred bidder.

3. Authorises Urban Vision Partnership to revert back to the remaining bidder 
to advise them that their bid has been unsuccessful.   

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

The subject site which comprises two plots totalling 3.46 acres was marketed for sale 
in December 2018 for a residential led scheme. 9 bids were received and 2 were 
shortlisted by the City Mayor on the 25th March 2019. 

Both parties were requested to submit for pre-application planning advice and to 
submit further offers based on the advice given.

Officers have reviewed the offers submitted by the parties and approval is now 
sought to select the preferred bidder and negotiate the detailed terms and conditions 
which will be subject to formal approval.

Page 123

Agenda Item 3d



2

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
Part 2 Report: Disposal of Land at Liverpool Street, Salford - 25th March 2019.

KEY DECISION: NO

DETAILS:

1.0 Background

1.1 The subject sites, shown edged red on the plan at Appendix 1 extend to 
approximately 3.46 acres (1.4 hectares) are referred to as Land at Liverpool 
Street and Kara Street. 

1.2 The sites were originally included in the Langworthy and Seedley Renewal       
Area where a number of terrace houses and several ancillary shops were 
acquired and subsequently demolished as part of the Housing Market 
Renewal Pathfinder Programme. The renewal area came to an end in 2011 
and the sites were not progressed.  

1.3 A pre-marketing consultation was carried out in mid-2018 where prospective 
developers were invited to express their interest and take part in one to one 
meetings to discuss options for the site. On the back of the pre-marketing 
consultation, sales particulars were drafted and released in December 2018 
with a closing date of 25th January 2019 set for offers. 

1.4 The sales particulars provided that all bids would be scored against a 
weighting system. The weighting system was provided to enable the Council 
to take into consideration Social Value and design elements of bids rather 
than solely the price. The chosen weighting system provided that Design 
would account for 40% of the bid, price at 40% and social value making up the 
final 20%.  

1.5 A total of 9 bids were initially received which were considered and at the City 
Mayors Property and Regeneration briefing on 25th March 2019. Two parties 
were shortlisted and requested to submit pre- planning application 
submissions and then a final bid which was policy compliant in respect of 
S106 requirements. The bids would be scored against the criteria outlined 
above. 

Page 124



3

2.0 Offers Received

2.1 The offers received have been summarised in the table below

Bidder Offer Number of Units S 106 
Obligation

(1) £4,047,842
less £340,000 
if HRA is 
successful.

149 ( 43 apartments 
and 106 houses)

£1,200,000

(2)
Option 1A 17 HRA £2,276,346 84 (9 apartments and 

75 houses)
£795,114

Option 1B 30% AH £2,312,975 84 (9 apartments and 
75 houses)

£795,114

Option 2A 17 HRA £1,958,984 81 (9 apartments and 
72 houses)

£766,717

Option 2B 30% AH £2,029,186 81 (9 apartments and 
72 houses)

£766,717

Option 3A 17 HRA £2,077,644 81 (9 apartments and 
72 houses)

£766,717

Option 3B 30% AH £2,147,846 81(9 apartments and 
72 houses) 

£766,717

.  

3.0 Summary of bids

3.1 The bids have been received subject to receipt of a satisfactory, 
implementable, detailed planning consent, assuming no adverse ground 
conditions over and above the allowance already deducted from the bids, titles 
are clean and marketable and finally Board approval.    

3.2 The bids have been reviewed by both the Planning Officer who responded to 
the pre-planning applications received and the Housing officer. The layouts of 
the alternative schemes submitted by the bidders are contained within the 
Appendices of this report. 

3.3 The bid received from Bidder 1 in partnership was the preferred option over 
the 6 options received form Bidder 2 by all 3 officers. The initial 
planning/design advice was for Bidder 2 to adopt a greater density and for 
Bidder 1 to adopt a lower density. From the pre-planning applications received 
it was felt that Bidder 1 had responded more positively and the scheme 
proposed reflected the character of the area, a modern perspective without 
replication. Bidder 2 had not increased the density sufficiently, the scheme 
was out of character for the area and the layout was not appropriate. The 
Housing Officer was also concerned that Bidder 2’s proposal did not include 
any 2 bedroom units.   

Page 125



4

3.4 In terms of the financial offer and S106 contribution, Bidder 1 is significantly 
higher primarily due to the increased density of homes to be built. 

3.5 As part of the sale, the Council has submitted an application to obtain grant 
funding via the Shared Ownership Affordable Housing Program (SOAHP). The 
funding, in unison with borrowing via the Council’s Housing Revenue Account 
(HRA), is for the provision of 17 units consisting of 9 one bedroom apartments, 
6 two bedroom houses and 2 three bedroom houses. The result of the    
SOAHP application is still awaited. These units, if the bid is successful, will be 
purchased at cost from the successful bidder. In the event that the SOAHP 
application is unsuccessful then bidders will be required to provide 30% of 
their schemes as affordable housing. These affordable units could potentially 
be acquired by Dérive. 

3.6 In addition to the SOAHP bid, there is a provision within the sale for 5 units to 
be acquired for community led development. These units will be acquired via a 
Homes England Community Led Development bid and at present discussions 
are on-going with SALT (Salford and Langworthy Trust) regarding a funding 
proposal being put forward.  

4.0     Conclusion

4.1 The review of bids has unanimously confirmed Bidder 1 as the preferred 
bidder. It is recommended that detailed negotiations are progressed with 
Bidder 1 including carrying out any detailed site investigations to minimise any 
risk to the capital receipt.

 
4.2 Once the above is agreed in principle a further report to be present to the City 

Mayor for the final approval of the sale. It is also recommended that Bidder 2 
are advised that their offer will not be taken forward.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

 Great Eight Priorities: Housing

 Great Eight Priorities: Economic Development

 2025 Salford = A Modern Global City

 Regeneration

 Housing Strategy

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:

There are no equality impact issues arising and directly as a consequence of this 
report

Page 126



5

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Low

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: David Green – Head of Regeneration

There are no legal implications arising from the report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Alex Archer, Finance Manager 778 0498
The disposal of the site would generate a maximum capital receipt of £4.048m which 
in line with Council policy would be used to finance existing debt. 
In addition to the capital receipt it is expected an additional £1.2m would be 
generated via S106 contributions.
The figures will be firmed up when the heads of terms are finalised and reported 
back.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: There are no procurement implications arising 
from this proposal.

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:

There are no HR implications arising from this proposal. 

WARD COUNCILLOR COMMENTS: Ward Councillors have been notified via email. 
No comments have been received.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 
Regeneration

CONTACT OFFICER: Jane Ashworth TEL NO: 0161 779 6092

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  Langworthy

Page 127



This page is intentionally left blank



1
4

STREET

BRIDSON

Sloping masonry

Ward Bdy

32

22

27

37

15

Christabel Walk

1
6

1

5 1
4

2

1
7

P
E

M
B

R
O

K
E

 S
T

R
E

E
T

3

1
4

1

2

C
A

R
D

IG
A

N
 S

T
R

E
E

T

R
O

S
T

H
E

R
N

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T

1
3

MP 29

H
A

V
E

N
 S

T
R

E
E

T

2
6

1
7

6
1
56

Gantry

1
8

M 602

9

2

1
3

WHITE STREET

5

2
1 2

2

2
7

2
3

1
3

1
2

CR

Posts

1

3
2

2
4

2
0

A
ils

a
 H

o
u

s
e

8

2
0

7

2
8

1
9

El Sub Sta

1
7

2
7

1
3

4
43
0

1
2

B
R

O
W

N
 S

T
R

E
E

T

5

2
0

3
2

2
 to

 1
8

5

17

8
0

15

7
0

2
6

1
4

1
9

El Sub Sta

S
E

E
D

L
E

Y
 P

A
R

K
 R

O
A

D

6
2

15

1
2

9

NORTHBOURNE STREET

16

SOUTHBOURNE STREET

35.3m

13

MIDDLEBOURNE STREET

12

Ps

EXETER STREET

1
4

3

18

1
5

3

35.6m

Club

1

4

1
1

1
6

1

1
4

1

Ps

S
O

U
T

H
B

O
U

R
N

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T

3
9

17

2
9

5
2

5

571

11

15

3
0

1
7

1
8

4
0

N
A

N
S

E
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

1

1
7

4
5

9
a

505

2

3
6

S
O

U
T

H
E

R
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

H
O

R
S

H
A

M
 S

T
R

E
E

T

4
1

4

M
IL

F
O

R
D

 S
T

R
E

E
T

2
6

2
2

4
6

7

3
5

1

2
3

H
E

R
S

E
Y

 S
T

R
E

E
T

2
7

469

49

1
6

2
2

1

2
a

13

Ashley

454

14

3
0

NEWPORT STREET

1
3

L
I T

T
L

E
W

O
O

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T

1

2
2

1

35.1m

1

N
O

R
W

A
Y

 S
T

R
E

E
T

K
N

U
T

S
F

O
R

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T

1
2

(PH)

1
4

2
4

Brook

1

8

5
2

2
5

2
3

2
0

551

2

479

2
6

3
5

.1
m

A
S

H
L

E
Y

 S
T

R
E

E
T

2
3

4
2

8

503

1

1

4
5

6

2
1

4

9

25

4

2

557

4
3

491

3
6

1

2
5

2

1
2

1
3

5
7

1
5

1

37

F
R

A
M

3
5

1

2
7

459

2
7

2
1

2
3

2
9

2

19

3
1

1
3

H
A

R
M

S
W

O
R

T
H

 S
T

R
E

E
T

61

1
3

1
0

2
8

4
4

0

5

2
8

47

515

2

1
3

1
6

493

35.9m

2

2
7

3

KARA STREET

1
3

LIVERPOOL STREET

6

4
6

8

2

MERE AVENUE

1
4

461

20

8

4

S
T

R
E

E
T

559 to 563

TCB

LB

483

4
1

1
1

1

4
8

412

20

1
4

5

36.7m

4
6

F
i d

d
i c

k
 C

o
u

rt

ICELAND STREET

1
2

1

1

2

6
8

9
5

St John's

1
0

3

18

Court

3
1

451

Community Centre

Langworthy Park

5
8

42

4
4

1
 t

o
 8

16

50

L
A

N
G

W
O

R
T

H
Y

 R
O

A
D

1
4

2
6

4
9

Post Post2

1 2

Pavilion

Bowling Green

4
8

4
4

43
33

26

23

5
3

12

5
2

1
1

5

4
2

20

1
8
6

14

1

SEEDLEY VIEW ROAD

1
7
0

4
6

10

9
9

12

37.1m

1
2
1

2

11

25

1
6
6

32

11

ANNIE STREET

2

WYTHBURN STREET

2

1

11

22

1
6
8

1

8
7

34

21

24

3
4

26

El

ORREL STREET

4
4

3
0

23

11

2

WYCHBURY STREET

1
8
4

DEYNE STREET

LYNDHURST STREET

21

34

12

23

18

13

13

4
8

1
7
8

Sta

5
6

27

12

5
4

5
0

14

6
0

1
1
3

33

24

Sub

36.1m

3
2

4

20

Edward Onyon

2

1
2

2
0

6

1
0

27

4
2

SYDNEY STREET

1
9

5
4

6

3
1

1
4

18

G
R

A
N

G
E

 S
T

R
E

E
T

7
5

15

7
5

6
1

20

ALEXANDER STREET

9

7
3

1
1

3
7

8

4

7
9

3
6

1

7
2

5

4
7

3

12

1
3

3

2

28

G
O

U
L

D
E

N
 S

T
R

E
E

T

8
3

4
5

22

9

S
P

R
IN

G
W

E
L

L
 C

L
O

S
E

22

2

6
3

1
0

FAIRBROOK DRIVE

3
3

36.3m

GREENLAND STREET

TRAIL STREET

E
M

M
E

L
IN

E

3
0

2

4
7

3
5

21

7
3

3
2

6
3

2

1

L
A

N
G

T
O

N
 S

T
R

E
E

T

W
O

O
D

G
R

A
N

G
E

 C
L
O

S
E

17

5
7

3
0

G
R

A
N

G
E

7
6

1
 t

o
 3

9

2
4

2
1

9

11

37.2m

1
6

2
9

6
4

6

Court

6
1

6
5

6
8

2

1

1

6
8

Willow Tree Primary School

1
6

7

L
A

B
U

R
N

U
M

 S
T

R
E

E
T

1
9

6

3
6

F
I R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

2
0

7

15

5
8

TCBs

1
6

5

6
1

1
6

3

20

1
8

8

5
1

2
1

9

2
6

18

1
9

8

Langham Road

1
9

2

El

1
8

4

1
6

9

15AMOS STREET

1
7

8
 to

 1
8

2

1
8

1

P
o
s
ts

Sub Sta

1
5

7
1
9

3

19

12

1
6

1

2
0

2

17

16

to

LB

K
E

S
W

I C
K

 G
R

O
V

E

D
U

C
H

Y
 S

T
R

E
E

T

19

6
8

14

L
A

N
G

W
O

R
T

H
Y

 R
O

A
D

L
A

B
U

R
N

U
M

 S
T

R
E

E
T

1
9

4

2
5

Surgery

17

F
I R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P

Post2
8

1
6

2
7

1
5

1
6

2
8Post

7
17

2

3
0 2

9

5
7

7
2

4
34

4
5
8

5
8

4
4

3
0

Post

Post

6
4

5
0

3
6

Apartments
Emmanuel Church

3
1

1
9

0

3
86

3

4
67

1

3
5

Emmanuel Church

and Centre

4
3

1
7

6
d

1 to 22

7
61

7
6
a

1
9

5

Appendix 1

Liverpool Street / Kara Street

Salford

Property
Information Section

Salford Civic Centre
Chorley Road

Salford
M27 5AS

Plan Ref:
Scale @ A4:
Date:
OS Map Ref:
Area:

1:2500
30/07/2019
SJ8098NW

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of
Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 100019737 2019

Page 129



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 

 

 

P
age 131



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 133



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3a Plot E7/E8 Chapel Street - Homes England Housing Infrastructure Fund
	3b Private Rented Sector - Langworthy, Weaste and Seedley
	03bii Annex 1 -The Evidence
	03biii Annex 2 -Results of the Consultation
	03biv Annex 3 - Selective Licence Conditions

	3c Asset of Community Value - Cheltenham Crescent Playing Field
	3d Liverpool Street/ Kara Street, Langworthy
	03dii  Appendix 1
	03diii Appendix 2
	03div Appendix 3


